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KEY FIGURES

31.12.2012 31.12.2011 31.12.2010"

Revenues EURm 196.676 207.812 174.943

whereof rental income and revenue

from hotel operations EURm 160.506 166.555 142.303
EBITDA EUR m 98.819 101.406 71.433
EBIT EURm 106.810 92.286 60.546
EBT EURm 32.198 29.643 9123
Consolidated net income EURm 26.028 21.245 2134
Total assets EURmM 2,013.832 2,175.378 2,256.163
Shareholders’ equity EURm 509.496 503.130 512.698
Liabilities EURm 1,504.336 1,672.248 1,743.465
Equity ratio (incl. participating certificate capital) in % 36 34 34
Investments EURm 14.183 35.997 107.620
Operating cash flow EURm 92.221 95.990 74195
Cash flow from investing activities EURm 113.139 4,525 -36.506
Cash flow from financing activities EURmM -258.621 -124.869 -84.440
Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December EURm 57.076 115.260 129.721
NOI margin in % 50 48 43
Loan to value ratio (excluding valuation of derivatives) in % 53 57 58
FFO EURm 33.048 28.906 18.704
Earnings per share EUR 0.36 0.29 0.03
EPRA NAV per share EUR 9.18 8.70 8.34
Share price discount from EPRA NAV in % 48 48 37
Balance sheet NAV per share EUR 717 6.96 7.07
Share price discount from balance sheet NAV in % 33 35 25
Cash flow from operations per share EUR 1.36 1.41 1.09
Property portfolio EURmM 1,872.285 1,969.500 2,013.066

whereof properties under construction EURm 20.157 55.480 55.989

) Adjusted
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Investing in living space

25 years ago, S IMMO became Austria’s first stock exchange listed

real estate investment company. Today, we stand for property expertise in
Austria, Germany, Central and Southeastern Europe. We combine
standing properties and development projects to deliberately invest in
residential, office, retail properties and hotels. This enables us to optimise
the balance of opportunities and risks in order to achieve successiul,

long-term value increases.

For us, properties are more than just bricks and concrete. From the very
beginning, we adopt the perspective of our tenants, answer their
questions and meet their demands. With our properties, we ultimately
create living space for people — a home or workplace, for everyday

use or lelsure time. Everyone who invests in our company invests with us

N a growing asset: living space.
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Dear Shareholders,

Very satisfactory operating performance
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“The very good results are proof that our strateqy works. We
invest aeliberately and can therefore benefit from property
cycles. This makes us efficient and profitable.”

Ernst Vejdovszky

In 2012, we continued to take advantage of the excellent climate
in the German and Austrian property markets and disposed of a
total of 21 properties at a profit. The total proceeds of these
sales were EUR 132.2m, meaning that we significantly exceeded
our target for the year — to dispose of 5% of our portfolio.

Key indicators show: S IMMO is top of its class

in efficiency

Our performance in the fourth quarter of 2012 continued to
follow the success of the first three, and for the full financial year,
all our most important indicators showed significant increases.
At 31 December 2012, net income for the year was up by 22.5%
to EUR 26.0m. EBIT increased by 15.7% to EUR 106.8m — the
highest in the Group’s history. Both indicators also reflect the
increases in efficiency, achieved with successful subsequent
lettings and cost reductions. This in connection with the upward
valuation of our portfolio, which proves the high quality of our
properties, more than compensated for negative impacts on
non-cash-effective financing costs and lower rental income
following property disposals. The increase of the EBITDA margin
from 48.8% in 2011 to just over 50% for the year under review is
also attributable to the quality of S IMMO's portfolio and the
further increases in efficiency.

Repurchasing programmes continued successfully

S IMMO'’s share price performance for 2012 (including dividend
payment) was 9.1%. This is a positive sign, but we — the
Management — still see significant upside potential. We have
continued the repurchase of our Share and also the repurchase
programme for the S IMMO INVEST participating certificates,
with the goal of simplifying our capital structure on a long-term
basis.

Erste Group and Vienna Insurance Group continue to be
S IMMO AG's strategic core shareholders — Erste Group
increased its holding to over 10%. We see this additional
investment as a long-term vote of confidence. In numerous
discussions with institutional investors and with many of our
26,000 private investors, it has become apparent that the
sentiment is changing: Mid-caps such as S IMMO that have a
convincing strategy and investment story are becoming
increasingly popular, in particular when it comes to long-term
investments.

Tried-and-tested strategy

Itis in economically difficult times like these that the real strengths
of a company and its strategy stand out. With 25 years of
experience, S IMMO knows its markets thoroughly and knows
how to take advantage of property cycles. Our focus is on
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“The quality of our portfolio, the commitment of our employees
and the increasing recovery of the markets make us
confident for the years to come. We are very well positioned

/7

to continue to act successfully.
Friedrich Wachernig

objects in capital cities within the European Union — from Berlin
via Prague and Vienna to Bucharest. We concentrate our
investment activities on four segments: office, hotel, retail and
residential.

S IMMO strives for a lean organisational structure in order to stay
efficient and flexible for the future. In 2012, we were successful
in reducing administration expenses by a further 4.4%. These
savings are also achieved by continuously expanding our
in-house skills and expertise and replacing external consultants
with internal know-how. The overall goal of all our activities is
to sustainably increase the value of the company by raising
profitability for the benefit of our shareholders.

In excellent shape for 2013

In the current financial year, we will continue to pursue our proven
strategy. Additionally, we will continue to take advantage of
lucrative opportunities for property sales and are aiming for
disposals to the value of around EUR 100m. We will use the sale
proceeds, among other things, to further reduce the loan to
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value ratio to under 50% and take advantage of favourable
investment opportunities to add to our portfolio — particularly in
Berlin. In Vienna, we are focusing on our Quartier Belvedere
Central project, which we are developing with partners at the
Vienna Central Station. First talks with potential tenants are
progressing well. The plan calls for construction work to begin
before the end of the year. On the capital market side, the
repurchase programmes for the S IMMO Share and the S IMMO
INVEST participating certificates will continue. We will be working
towards the further optimisation of property-related costs and
administration expenses, while always being careful to maintain
our high quality standards.

In 2013, we have the ambition to once again outperform the very
good results of the financial year and therefor we will commit all
our energy. The property markets are showing some signs of a
gradual recovery, which should bring us benefits in the long run.
With its high-quality portfolio, its efficient administration and its
thoroughly competent staff, S IMMO is perfectly positioned over-
all to meet the challenges of the coming years.



S MmO

Proposal to increase dividend payment




OVERVIEW OF THE MANAGEMENT BODIES

Management Boara

ERNST VEJDOVSZKY

Born 30 October 1953
Appointment until 31 January 2016
First appointed 01 January 2001

Responsible for finances, asset
management in Austria and Germany,
and risk management

As from 27 February 2013:

Responsible for finances, corporate
communications, investor relations,
acquisition, disposals, risk management,
audit, asset management in Germany

Other appointments:

Member of the supervisory board,
Erste Immobilien Kapitalanlage-
gesellschaft m.b.H.

FRIEDRICH WACHERNIG MBA

Born 28 June 1966
Appointment until 14 November 2013
First appointed 15 November 2007

Responsible for project developments,
asset management in CEE/SEE,
acquisition and disposal of development
land and projects, organisation,

IT and HR

As from 27 February 2013:

Responsible for project developments,
asset management in CEE/SEE and
Austria, legal, compliance, organisation,
IT, HR

HOLGER SCHMIDTMAYR MRICS

Born 06 May 1966

Appointment until 31 January 2013
(current term of office has expired)
First appointed 01 October 2004

Responsible for acquisition and disposal
of investment properties, corporate
communications, investor relations, legal
and compliance



Supervisory Board

MARTIN SIMHANDL

Born 05 November 1961
Appointment until the AGM in 2015
First appointed 24 June 2004

Chairman of the Audit Committee
Chairman of the Management Board
Committee

CFO, Vienna Insurance Group AG Wiener
Versicherung Gruppe

Other supervisory board appointments:
DONAU Versicherung AG Vienna
Insurance Group; Sparkassen
Versicherung AG Vienna Insurance
Group; Ringturm Kapitalanlagegesell-
schaft m.b.H. and others

GERALD ANTONITSCH

Born 11 April 1956
Appointment until the AGM in 2015
First appointed 18 June 2002

Chairman of the Working Committee
Member of the Audit Committee
Member of the Management Board
Committee

Former member of the management
board, Erste Group Immorent AG

Other supervisory board appointments:
Immorent-Bank GmbH; ERSTE Immo-
bilien Kapitalanlagegesellschaft m.b.H.

Advisory board appointments:

s REAL Immobilienvermittiung GmbH;
AREALIS Liegenschaftsmanagement
GmbH

FRANZ KERBER

Born 20 June 1953
Appointment until the AGM in 2015
First appointed 24 June 2004

Member of the Management Board
Committee
Member of the Working Committee

Deputy chairman of the management
board, Steierméarkische Bank und
Sparkassen AG

Other supervisory board appointments:
Bankhaus Krentschker & Co. AG; Erste &
Steiermarkische Bank d.d., Rijeka;
Sparkasse Bank Makedonija a.d., Skopje

CHRISTIAN HAGER

Born 06 December 1967
Appointment until the AGM in 2014
First appointed 23 June 2009

Member of the management board,
KREMSER BANK und Sparkassen AG

ERWIN HAMMERBACHER

Born 27 May 1957
Appointment until the AGM in 2013
First appointed 28 May 2008

Member of the Audit Committee
Member of the Working Committee

Member of the management board,
Sparkassen Versicherung AG Vienna
Insurance Group

S MmO

MICHAEL MATLIN MBA

Born 07 January 1964
Appointment until the AGM in 2015
First appointed 21 May 2010

Managing director, Concord Management
LLC (portfolio strategy consultants);
Member of the investor advisory
committee, Carlyle European Real Estate
Funds

WILHELM RASINGER

Born 04 March 1948
Appointment until the AGM in 2015
First appointed 21 May 2010

Alternate member of the Audit Committee

Managing partner, Inter-Management
Unternehmensberatung Gesellschaft
m.b.H. and Am Klimtpark Liegenschafts-
verwaltungsgmbH; Chairman of the
Austrian Shareholder Association (IVA);
Chairman of the supervisory board,
Friedrichshof Wohnungsgenossenschaft

Other supervisory board appointments:
Erste Group Bank AG; Wienerberger AG

Other appointments:
Appointment as a board member for the
foundation HATEC Privatstiftung, Dornbirn

RALF ZEITLBERGER

Born 07 April 1959
Appointment until the AGM in 2015
First appointed 21 May 2010

Member of the Audit Committee
Member of the Working Committee

Division manager, Group Corporate
Workout, Erste Group Bank AG

Other supervisory board appointments:
Let’s Print Holding AG; Erste Group
Immorent AG
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Dear Shareholders,

In 2012, S IMMO AG once
again posted excellent results,
showing a significant increase
in profits. This was all the more
impressive given the economic
climate in the European Union,
where the debt crisis and
austerity measures in several
member states continued to
weigh down market sentiment
during the reporting period.
There were increases in key
performance indicators such
as profit, EBIT and EBT, which
were attributable to various
including leasing
successes, further reductions in costs and profitable property
sales. With respect to the capital markets, | am pleased to report
that in June 2012, S IMMO AG paid its shareholders a dividend
for the first time. The new dividend policy marks what is intended
to be a long-term change in strategy.

Martin Simhandl

factors

As in the years before, the Supervisory Board advised and
assisted the Company and the Management Board in all the
Group's undertakings during the financial year 2012. In the
meetings of the Supervisory Board and its committees, we
discharged our duties under the law, the Company’s articles of
incorporation and the Group’s internal rules and procedures,
and advised and supervised the Management Board in the
performance of its management duties.

The Supervisory and Management Boards of S IMMO AG met
four times during the year under review to discuss the Group'’s
economic situation, its risk management, its strategic direction
and its business development, especially in light of the persist-
ing challenges posed by the market environment. At each
meeting, the Management Board reported to the Supervisory
Board in full on the state of the Group’s affairs and finances as
well as on strategic issues.

Between six and eight Supervisory Board members were present

at each of the four Supervisory Board meetings, representing an
average attendance rate of 90.1%.
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S IMMO AG has subscribed to the Austrian Code of Corporate
Governance since 2007. The obligations in the Code go beyond
the statutory requirements applicable to public limited com-
panies; they are adopted voluntarily and they are designed to
ensure even greater transparency in reporting. In 2012, the
Supervisory Board carried out a self-evaluation to review the
efficiency of its work, and in particular, its organisation and
working procedures.

The Supervisory Board has formed three committees: the
Management Board Committee, the Audit Committee and the
Working Committee. The duties and composition of the commit-
tees are detailed in the corporate governance part of this report
(pages 12-15). In the Supervisory Board and in the committee
meetings, no agenda items were discussed without the parti-
cipation of Management Board members. In addition to the
Supervisory Board meetings, there were two circular resolutions
approved in writing.

The Working Committee held two meetings to consider property
disposals and acquisitions planned during the year and
approved one circular resolution in writing. The Audit Committee
met twice in the financial year 2012 to monitor the accounting
process and Group auditing activities, the effectiveness of the
internal control and risk management systems, the audit system
and the compliance report. The Management Board Committee
did not meet during the year under review, but did approve a
circular resolution in writing.

In preparation for the Supervisory Board’s nomination of audi-
tors for the Company’s individual and consolidated annual
financial statements, the Audit Committee reviewed the docu-
mentation submitted by Deloitte Audit Wirtschaftsprifungs
GmbH evidencing their right to practise as auditors. A written
report confirmed that there were neither grounds for exclusion,
nor any circumstances that could give rise to concerns about
conflicts of interest. A schedule of the total remuneration paid
to Deloitte by S IMMO AG relating to the preceding financial
year, itemised by categories of services, was requested and
inspected. It was also confirmed that Deloitte complies with the
legally required quality assurance measures for maintaining
audit quality. The Audit Committee reported to the Supervisory
Board on its work and its findings in these matters. The Super-
visory Board therefore proposed to the Annual General Meeting
the appointment of Deloitte Audit Wirtschaftsprifungs GmbH as



auditors of the Company’s individual and consolidated annual
financial statements for the financial year 2012. In preparation of
a nomination of auditors for the Company'’s individual and con-
solidated financial statements for the financial year 2013 for the
Annual General Meeting, an invitation to tender for the provision
of auditing services in respect of the individual and consolidated
annual financial statements of S IMMO AG and various major
Group companies for the financial year 2013 was issued.

The Audit Committee received the submission of the annual
financial statements for 2012 by the Management Board to-
gether with the management report and the corporate gover-
nance report. The Committee inspected the statements and
reports, and approved them on the basis of the audit reports by
Deloitte Audit Wirtschaftsprifungs GmbH. In the course of this
review, the Management Board's proposal for distribution of
profits was discussed and approved. The Audit Committee also
reviewed the consolidated annual financial statements prepared
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) for 2012 together with the Group management report. On
the basis of its review and discussions, the Audit Committee
recommended to the Supervisory Board the acceptance of the
Company’s annual financial statements and their adoption in
accordance with section 96(4) Austrian Stock Corporation Act
(AktG), and the acceptance of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements. The Supervisory Board discussed in detail
and reviewed the annual financial statements for 2012, including
the management and corporate governance reports, the
consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) for 2012
together with the consolidated management report, and the
distribution of profits proposed by the Management Board.

The audit reports prepared by Deloitte Audit Wirtschaftsprifungs
GmbH on the annual financial statements for 2012 together with
the management report and on the consolidated annual finan-
cial statements for 2012 together with the Group management
report were also reviewed by the Audit Committee and the full
Supervisory Board and discussed in detail with Deloitte Audit
Wirtschaftsprifungs GmbH. There were no objections raised by
Deloitte Audit Wirtschaftsprifungs GmbH in the course of their
audit of the annual financial statements and the management
reports of the Company and the Group for the year ended
31 December 2012. Deloitte Audit Wirtschaftsprifungs GmbH
has confirmed that the annual financial statements for 2012
comply with the statutory requirements and give a true and fair
view of the assets and finances of S IMMO AG as at 31 Decem-
ber 2012 and of its earnings for the year ended on that date, and
are in accordance with generally accepted Austrian accounting
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principles. The management report is consistent with the annual
financial statements for 2012. Deloitte Audit Wirtschaftsprifungs
GmbH has also confirmed that the consolidated annual financial
statements for 2012 comply with the statutory requirements and
give a true and fair view of the assets and finances of the Group
as at 31 December 2012 and of its earnings and cash flows for
the year ended on that date, and are in accordance with IFRS
standards. The Group management report is consistent with the
consolidated financial statements for 2012. The requirements
under section 243a Austrian Commercial Code (UGB) have
been complied with.

The review by the Audit Committee and Supervisory Board gave
no grounds for objection. The Supervisory Board declares that it
had nothing to add to the audit reports by the auditors. The
Supervisory Board therefore resolved to accept the annual
financial statements for 2012 and the management report
prepared by the Management Board, and had no objections to
the consolidated annual financial statements for 2012 and the
Group management report prepared in accordance with IFRS,
and to the Management Board'’s proposal for the distribution of
profits. In accordance with section 96(4) Austrian Stock Corpor-
ation Act (AktG), the annual financial statements for 2012 were
therefore adopted.

The Supervisory Board will propose to the Annual General
Meeting that the Management Board’s proposal for the distribu-
tion of profits be adopted, and that the Management and
Supervisory Boards be discharged from liability.

The Supervisory Board would like to thank the Management
Board and staff of S IMMO AG for their hard work on a daily
basis and dedication during the past year. And in this connec-
tion, I should like to express my particular thanks to Holger
Schmidtmayr, whose appointment expired at the end of January
2013, for his years of devoted service and his work as a member
of S IMMO AG’s Management Board. | wish him all the best in
his future business and private life.

Vienna, April 2013

The Supervisory Board

A

Martin Simhandl
Chairman
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Corporate Governance Report

The Austrian Code of Corporate Governance contains rules for the management and control of an enterprise and
therefore forms the basis of responsible management. In 2012, S IMMO AG again complied with the requirements

of the Code.

CLEAR COMMITMENT TO THE AUSTRIAN CODE OF
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The fundamental principles underlying good corporate gover-
nance are an integral part of what S IMMO AG stands for. From
its beginnings in 1987, the main principles of S IMMO AG'’s busi-
ness strategy have been
sustainability, long-term

TRANSPARENT COMMUNICATION AND REPORTING

The provision of transparent, prompt information to its share-
holders, analysts and all other interested parties — while
observing the provisions of company law and stock exchange
regulations — is a cornerstone of S IMMO AG’s corporate
strategy. Important business events and information relevant to
the Company’s performance are published immediately in the

Information about corporate governance: growth and transparency.
This is why the Manage-

ment and Supervisory

form of ad hoc and press releases. Additionally, all important
announcements, annual and interim reports as well as presen-
tations are published on S IMMO AG’s website at once.

www.simmoag.at/en/cgk

www.corporate-governance.at

Boards work closely and
efficiently together. The
Company’s corporate communications and investor relations
activities are based on openness and transparency.

As a member of the European Public Real Estate Association
(EPRA), S IMMO AG has adopted the guidelines and standards
of that organisation. These cover the disclosure of information,
ethical principles and industry standards. EPRA's guidelines are

COMPLIANCE STATEMENT

Since 2007, S IMMO AG has been expressly committed to complying
with the provisions and recommendations of the Austrian Code of
Corporate Governance (OCGK). The full rules and regulations for
responsible management and leadership of enterprises can be found on
the website of the Austrian Working Group for Corporate Governance.

The key elements of corporate governance at S IMMO AG are described
on pages 12—15. Additional information is contained in the Supervisory
Board report on pages 10-11. To avoid repetition, some aspects are
discussed in other parts of the Annual Report, to which reference is then
made elsewhere.

Continuously updated information on corporate governance is posted on
S IMMO AG’s website: www.simmoag.at/en/cgk

The rules of the Austrian Code of Corporate Governance are as follows:

1. L Rules (legal requirements): L Rules are based on mandatory
statutory requirements.

2. C Rules (comply or explain): C Rules should be complied with.
According to the Code, any non-compliance must be explained
and justified.

3. R Rules (recommendations): R Rules are recommendations.
Non-compliance needs neither be disclosed nor justified.

S IMMO AG fully complies with all L Rules.

Referring to L Rule 60, S IMMO AG is fully committed to the advancement
of women in management positions. Within the Group, around 52% of
the staff are women, and in senior management positions, roughly 20%
of the managers are women. S IMMO AG has taken specific measures
to ensure that when filling senior managerial positions, the advancement
of women will also be given greater emphasis in future. Given the existing
long-term appointments, specific measures to appoint women to the
Management and Supervisory Boards are not currently under considera-
tion. With the Group’s best interests in mind, the emphasis when making
appointments to the Boards has been on the maximum possible degree
of professional skill and international experience. Considerations such as
gender are only taken into account as a secondary factor. Where appro-
priate, however, when men and women are equally qualified and
experienced, S IMMO AG will give preference to women.

S IMMO AG also complies with almost all the C Rules, with the excep-
tions explained below.

C Rule 16: “The management board shall consist of more than one
person, and shall have a chairperson.”
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based on International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
and provide specific accounting recommendations for listed
real estate companies. In the interests of transparent and
comparable reporting, S IMMO AG implements these
recommendations in the detailed notes to the consolidated
financial statements.

COMPOSITION, ACTIVITIES AND PROCEDURES OF
THE MANAGEMENT AND SUPERVISORY BOARDS

The Management and Supervisory Boards are fully conscious
of their responsibility for ensuring long-term sustainable value
creation and the continuing success of the Group. The intensive,
ongoing dialogue between the two Boards is the basis of
efficient and competent management.

In 2012, the Management Board consisted of three members,
who were jointly responsible for managing the Company’s day-
to-day affairs. Since 01 February 2013, the Management Board
has consisted of two members. More detailed information about
the individual members and their responsibilities is shown in the
overview of management bodies on page 8 of this report. The
Management Board discusses current business developments
several times a week and holds regular Management Board
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meetings. There is an ongo-
ing exchange of information
with the managers respon-
sible for the various depart-
ments. The Management
Board also provides the
Supervisory Board with information about all material aspects of
the progress of business and all strategic considerations.
Collaboration between the two Boards is governed by the
Austrian Stock Corporation Act (AktG), the Company’s articles of
incorporation as well as the rules and procedures established by
the Supervisory Board.

European Public Real

Estate Association (EPRA):
WWW.epra.com

As at 31 December 2012, the Supervisory Board consisted of
eight members. Information about the individual members of the
Supervisory Board is shown in the overview of management
podies on page 9.

The Supervisory Board regularly reviews the management of
the Company'’s affairs. In its meetings, the Supervisory Board
monitors the management of the business as well as the
finances, strategy, performance and risk management of the
Company. It is responsible for decision-making as provided by
statute, the Company’s articles of incorporation as well as its

The Supervisory Board has not appointed a chairperson of the Manage-
ment Board, because it is of the opinion that the duties and responsibili-
ties of all members of the Management Board are of equal importance,
and because it believes that the Company is adequately represented by
individual Management Board members with collective authority.

C Rule 31: “The fixed and performance-related compensation of each
member of the management board shall be disclosed separately in the
annual report.”

The total remuneration of the Management Board and its Members is
disclosed in this report on page 15. The separate disclosure of the fixed,
variable and other components of their individual remuneration remains
the personal decision of each Management Board member. In the
Management Board’s opinion, such disclosure does not provide signifi-
cant information for investors.

C Rule 41: “The supervisory board shall appoint a Nominations
Committee.”

Appointments to vacant positions on the Management Board are matters
of importance, and — together with the issue of succession planning — are
therefore discussed by the full Supervisory Board.

C Rule 45: “Members of the supervisory board may not exercise
man-aging body functions in other companies that are in competition
with the company.”

Certain members of the Supervisory Board of S IMMO AG also serve on
the boards of similar companies or perform executive functions in Erste
Group Bank AG, its wholly owned subsidiary Erste Group Immorent AG
or Vienna Insurance Group. All members of the Supervisory Board are
obliged to disclose any conflicts of interest arising from their activities as
members of the Supervisory Board without delay. In any event, the
Company considers the extensive knowledge of the industry and the
networks of certain Supervisory Board members to be an advantage
from which it can benefit.

C Rule 49: “The company shall disclose in its annual report details of
the objects and remuneration of contracts and agreements requiring
approval under L Rule 48. Summary disclosure of agreements of similar
kinds is permissible.”

The Company may enter into contractual relationships with individual
members of the Supervisory Board, or with businesses in which Super-
visory Board members have an interest or exercise a management body
function. To the extent that such contractual agreements require the
approval of the Supervisory Board under section 95 Austrian Stock
Corporation Act (AktG) and L Rule 48, approval has been sought and
obtained. The details of such contracts and agreements are not disclosed
for reasons of competition. All such contracts and agreements are
concluded on normal market conditions.
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internal rules and procedures. The Supervisory Board has
formed committees, which are listed below. During the year
under review, there were four Supervisory Board meetings.
At these, between six and eight Board members were present,
representing an average attendance rate of 90.1%.

SUPERVISORY BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

The functions of the Audit Committee include monitoring the
accounting and reporting process and the work of the auditors,
monitoring the effectiveness of the Internal Control System and
the risk management system, and monitoring the process of
auditing the Group’s financial statements. The Audit Committee
consisted of the following members: Martin Simhand! (Chair-
man), Gerald Antonitsch, Erwin Hammerbacher, Ralf Zeitlberger
and Wilhelm Rasinger (alternate). In virtue of their experience
and specialist knowledge of finance and accounting, Martin
Simhand!l and Ralf Zeitlberger are the Committee’s financial
experts. The Audit Committee met twice during the year under
review.

Management Board Committee

(Remuneration Committee)

The Management Board Committee is responsible for negotiat-
ing, concluding and amending contracts with the Management
Board. The Committee consisted of the following members:
Martin Simhand| (Chairman), Gerald Antonitsch and Franz
Kerber. The Management Board Committee did not meet during
the year under review.

Working Committee

The Working Committee has certain approval rights on behalf of
the Supervisory Board. These are limited to a certain value and
are practised in cases where it is impractical for the entire Super-
visory Board to give approval either due to lack of time or
organisational constraints. This is common for the purchase and
sale of company properties (up to a certain risk level) as defined
in the Supervisory Board's rules and procedures. The members
of the Working Committee were Gerald Antonitsch (Chairman),
Erwin Hammerbacher, Franz Kerber and Ralf Zeitlberger. The
Working Committee met twice during the year under review.
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STATEMENT OF INDEPENDENCE

S IMMO AG'’s Supervisory Board has established the following
criteria for the independence of its members as required under
C Rule 53 of the Austrian Code of Corporate Governance:

B A Supervisory Board member should not in the preceding
five years have been a member of the Management Board or an
executive officer of S IMMO AG or one of its subsidiaries.

B A Supervisory Board member should not maintain, or in the
preceding year have maintained, a business relationship of
material importance to that Supervisory Board member with
S IMMO AG or one of its subsidiaries. This applies also to busi-
ness relationships with enterprises in which the Supervisory
Board member has a material interest. The approval of individual
transactions by the Supervisory Board in accordance with
L Rule 48 does not automatically mean that a person is not
independent.

B A Supervisory Board member should not in the preceding
three years have served as statutory auditor of S IMMO AG, or
have had an interest in, or been an employee of the auditing
firm.

B A Supervisory Board member should not be a member of
the management board of another company where a member of
the Management Board of S IMMO AG is a member of that
company’s supervisory board.

B A Supervisory Board member should not be a close family
member (direct descendant, spouse, domestic partner, parent,
uncle, aunt, sibling, nephew, niece) of a member of the Manage-
ment Board or of persons in any of the positions described
above.

For the financial year 2012, the following members of the
Supervisory Board, who together constitute the majority of
the Supervisory Board, are independent in the meaning of
C Rule 53 and C Rule 54 of the Code of Corporate Governance.
These members satisfy the Supervisory Board'’s criteria for
independence.

Current independent members of the Supervisory Board
Martin Simhandl (in the meaning of C Rule 53)

Franz Kerber (in the meaning of C Rules 53 and 54)

Christian Hager (in the meaning of C Rules 53 and 54)

Erwin Hammerbacher (in the meaning of C Rule 53)

Michael Matlin MBA (in the meaning of C Rule 53)

Wilhelm Rasinger (in the meaning of C Rules 53 and 54)

Ralf Zeitlberger (in the meaning of C Rule 53)



Their positions, their principal occupations and other supervisory
board appointments are shown in the overview of management
bodies on page 9.

DIRECTORS’ DEALINGS

Under section 48d(4) Austrian Stock Exchange Act (BorseG),
S IMMO AG is required to report all share purchases and sales
by members of management bodies or persons in close
relationships with them. In accordance with the requirements of
the Code, dealings by members of the Management and Super-
visory Boards (directors’ dealings) are disclosed on S IMMO
AG’s website (www.simmoag.at/en) under Investor Relations/
Corporate Governance/Directors’ Dealings. In the financial year
2012, there were neither purchases nor sales of shares or par-
ticipating certificates made by any of the above persons.

D&O INSURANCE

Pursuant to a resolution of the Annual General Meeting 2009, a
directors and officers liability insurance policy has been in force
since 01 September 2009. Under this policy, claims by the
Company, the shareholders or third parties against members of
managing bodies or executive officers of the Company for
damages arising from breaches of the duty of care are insured.
The costs of the insurance are borne by the Company.

REMUNERATION OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD

Members of the Supervisory Board received a total remunera-
tion amounting to EUR 106,500 (2011: EUR 123,336).

Total Management Board remuneration 2012

Simhandl EUR
Antonitsch EUR
Kerber EUR
Hammerbacher EUR
Hager EUR
Matlin EUR
Rasinger EUR
Zeitlberger EUR
Total EUR

Supervisory Board members received neither loans nor
advances, and no guarantees have been given on their behalf.
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REMUNERATION OF THE MANAGEMENT BOARD

During the financial year 2012, the total remuneration of the
Management Board amounted to EUR 1,121,100 (2011:
EUR 934,000). The total remuneration consisted of a fixed as
well as a variable component making up approximately 80% of
the fixed remuneration in 2012. Profit participation is dependent
on the achievement of quantitative and qualitative targets, such
as consolidated earnings, letting successes and the volume of
property sales. The total remuneration includes contributions to
pension funds of EUR 74,400 (2011: EUR 73,800), contributions
to the employees severance pay and pension fund of EUR
14,300 (2011: EUR 9,000) as well as an increase of the pension
accrual for Mr. Vejdovszky in the amount of EUR 126,600 (2011:
EUR 43,000).

Total Management Board remuneration 2012

Vejdovszky EUR 488,200
Wachernig EUR 316,500
Schmidtmayr EUR 316,400
Total EUR 1,121,100

S IMMO AG has no stock option scheme at present and no
individual severance entitlements for Management Board
members.

AUDITORS

By resolution of the Annual General Meeting 2012, Deloitte Audit
Wirtschaftsprifungs GmbH was appointed as statutory auditors.
The auditors assist the Supervisory Board in assessing whether
appropriate accounting policies have been applied, and whether
the accounts and financial statements conform with the appli-
cable statutory regulations and are reasonable and reliable. The
auditors must immediately report to the Supervisory Board on
any deficiencies revealed by the audit. This also applies to any
discrepancies in the compliance statement made by the
Supervisory and Management Boards in connection with the
Austrian Code of Corporate Governance.

T M/

Friedrich Wachernig

Ernst Vejdovszky
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Our Share

Capital markets

For the stock markets, 2012 was another year of pronounced
fluctuations. Throughout the year, reports from several EU
member states continually cast a cloud over investor sentiment
as these struggling economies posed a threat to the euro. The
capital markets only stabilised towards the end of the summer,
after the President of the European Central Bank (ECB)
announced an unlimited bond purchase programme for euro-
zone government bonds. Stock markets then became more
optimistic, and major stock exchanges experienced a year-end
rally for the first time in a long period. Crises and unresolved
structural problems in Europe, the USA and China will continue
to impact capital markets in 2013. As in 2012, share prices may
benefit from the less attractive bond market, low interest rates on
savings accounts and uncertainties surrounding the euro.

Share price development

indexed (01.01.2012 to 31.12.2012)

B S IMMO Share | ATX m IATX
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Performance of the S IMMO Share

S IMMO AG became the first Austrian property investment com-
pany to be listed on the Vienna Stock Exchange in 1987, and its
Share is part of Austria’s property share index, the IATX. At the
start of 2012, the S IMMO Share stood at EUR 4.45, and during
the first half of the year, the price movement was predominantly
sideways. In the second half of the year, the price improved,
reaching its annual high of EUR 5.14 in October. Its strength in
autumn went hand-in-hand with an increase in volumes traded.
At the end of September, daily turnover reached its peak, with
223,000 shares traded (single counting). In the last quarter, the
share price dropped slightly to close the year at EUR 4.81, re-
sulting in a discount of 33% to balance sheet NAV. At 31 Decem-
ber 2012, the market capitalisation was EUR 327.7m.

Shareholder structure

S IMMO AG benefits from the expertise and networks of its two
strategic core shareholders, Erste Group and Vienna Insurance
Group, the two largest providers of financial services in Central
and Southeastern Europe, each of which holds approximately
10% of S IMMO. Towards the end of July, Erste Group increased
its holding in S IMMO AG to more than 10%, which can be seen
as a large vote of confidence. The other institutional investors
are major Austrian investors and shareholders mostly from the
United Kingdom, the USA and Norway. There are also around
26,000 Austrian private investors holding S IMMO Shares.
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S IMMO Share performance
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S IMMO INVEST participating certificate performance

ISIN AT 0000652250 AT0000795737 AT0000630694
One year 6.89% One year 14.40% 15.30%
Three years, p.a. -1.28% Three years, p.a. 6.60% 6.40%

S IMMO Share information

ISIN AT0000652250/SPI

Reuters: SIAG.VI
Bloomberg: SPI:AV

Vienna Stock Exchange

Ticker symbols

Market

Prime Market
GPR General / IATX

Market segment

Index

Market capitalisation

(31 December 2012) EUR 327.7m
Number of shares
(31 December 2012) 68,118,718

Market maker Erste Group/

Westend Brokers AG
28 June 2002

Initial listing

International stock and capital markets

At the end of 2012, the major international stock markets looked
healthy: The Dow Jones Industrial Index (DJIl), made up of the
30 largest listed US companies, ended the year at 13,104.14
points, an increase of 5.7% compared with the end of 2011. This
is the same level as at the end of 2007. Structural problems such
as the size of the national debt and the lack of agreement in the
Senate and the House of Representatives acted as a damper on
the upwards trend of the DJII. At 31 December 2012, the leading
German index, the DAX, closed at 7,655.9 points, falling short of
its historic high of 8,000 points.

Participating certificate information

ISIN AT0000795737 (initial listing 1996)
AT0000630694 (initial listing 2004)

Reuters: SIMIg.VI
Bloomberg: SIIG:AV

Ticker symbols

Market Vienna Stock Exchange

Market segment other securities.at

Market capitalisation

(31 December 2012) EUR 201.6m

1,703,069 tranche |
1,070,893 tranche Il

Number of participating certificates
(31 December 2012)

Year-end closing price

(tranche I/1l) in EUR 72.97/72.25
High (tranche I/ll) in EUR 73.85/73.85
Low (tranche I/Il) in EUR 65.75/67.00

The leading Austrian index, the ATX, was able to keep pace with
the major international stock markets and at 31 December 2012,
it closed at 2,401.21 points, a significant increase on the pre-
vious year. Despite trading volumes in 2012 having dropped to
the same level as in 2004, the outlook for the Vienna Stock
Exchange in 2013 is good. The main reasons for the decline in
trading are the introduction of a capital gains tax on securities for
Austrian private investors and the fact that Vienna is currently
seen as a secondary European stock exchange. On a more
cheerful note, some international investors are again showing
increased interest in Austrian companies. In addition, share
prices in the eurozone are thought to have significantly more
upside potential than in the USA. The predicted price/earnings
ratio of 9.9 for European shares is definitely a recommendation.
The Austrian property share index, the IATX, closed the year at
174.01 points.
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Latest coverage reports:

www.simmoag.at/en/coverage
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Share indicators 2011
Closing price at year-end EUR 4.500
High EUR 5.290
Low EUR 3.370
Average daily turnover shares 89,800
Earnings per share (EPS) EUR 0.29
EPRA NAV per share EUR 8.70
Share price discount from EPRA NAV in % 48
Balance sheet NAV per share EUR 6.96
Share price discount from balance sheet NAV in % 35
Operating cash flow per share EUR 1.41
Price/operating cash flow EUR 3.19

Annual General Meeting and repurchase programmes
SIMMO AG’s 23rd Annual General Meeting was held on 01 June
2012 in the Vienna Marriott Hotel, a standing property belonging
to the Group. The resolutions discharging the Management and
Supervisory Boards from
liability for the financial
year 2011 were approved
unanimously. A resolution
proposing the distribution
of a EUR 0.10 dividend
per share for the first time was also approved. The payment, in
the form of a tax-free capital repayment, took place on 15 June
2012. The distribution of dividends represents a shift in the
Group's long-term strategy.

The repurchase programmes for the S IMMO Share and the
S IMMO INVEST participating certificate, both of which found
approval with analysts and investors, continued last year. The
Annual General Meeting approved the further repurchase of own
shares. A new share repurchase programme, which will end no
later than 27 June 2013, was therefore approved by the Super-
visory Board. In 2012, a total of 450,441 S IMMO Shares to the
value of EUR 2,047,979.17 were repurchased. During the same
period, 131,464 S IMMO INVEST participating certificates, which
can be redeemed no earlier than 31 December 2017, were
repurchased to the value of EUR 9,538,251.95 and cancelled.

Coverage

Currently five Austrian and international analysts cover the
S IMMO Share. Raiffeisen Centrobank started its coverage in
March 2012. The average share price target is EUR 5.46.

Analyst Target price/fair value Recommendation
Erste Group EUR 5.40 Accumulate

HSBC Global Research EUR 5.20 Neutral

KBC Securities EUR 4.69 Hold

Raiffeisen Centrobank EUR 5.00 Hold

SRC Research EUR 7.00 Buy
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IR activities and investor services

In addition to providing customer service to Austrian private
investors at information events together with Osterreichische
Sparkassen, there were presentations of the Group in coopera-
tion with the financial periodical GEWINN and Borse Express.
Internationally, S IMMO AG’s Management participated in events
organised by its capital market partners. Highlights were Group
presentations at real estate conferences held by HSBC and SRC
Research in Frankfurt, Raiffeisen Centrobank in Zurs and Erste
Group in New York as well as CA Cheuvreux's roadshow in Paris.
Over the course of the year, it was noticeable that the attitude
towards Austrian property securities gradually improved, an
upturn that was also reflected in the higher volumes of

Your contact partners

5

> IMMO

S IMMO Shares traded. In
addition to the numerous Visit our website at:
roadshows, a number of
telephone conferences and
Subscribe to our newsletter:

one-on-one discussions

were held with investors and

analysts in Austria and

abroad.

Furthermore, we keep our shareholders, tenants and partners
up-to-date via our website, our newsletter and various social
media channels such as Twitter. We are also available to our
investors via phone.

Andreas Feuerstein

Austrian Investors

Phone: +43 (0)50 100-27556
Fax:  +43(0)50 100 9-27556
andreas.feuerstein@simmoag.at

Sylwia Milke

International Investors

Phone: +43 (0)50 100-27402
Fax:  +43 (0)50 100 9-27402
sylwia.milke@simmoag.at

Follow us on Twitter:
http://twitter.com/simmoag

twitterd

] Tubcy

View our videos on YouTube:
http://www.youtube.com/simmoag1

View our pictures on Flickr:
http://www.flickr.com/photos/simmoag

flickr
XING™

Our network on Xing:
https://www.xing.com/companies/simmo

View our profile on Linkedin:
http://www.linkedin.com/company/2279913
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We shape space

for people.

We act with foresight because for us a property is
more than just an object. Our buildings should be ideal
places to live, work and enjoy leisure time, and they should
improve the quality of life. That is why we manage our
properties attentively right up to and beyond their successful
completion. Sustainability is a particular focus of our work.
We make an active contribution to protecting the environment
oy refurbishing sites and setting the highest standards
for our development projects. Numerous green building
certificates for our properties are proof of our commitment.
We shape living space with a sense of responsibility,

021



INVESTING IN LIVING SPACE

.[FI_'1-_L-*““- | ll-r-r--=' '

Lt
T e U|

A




5

> IMMO

We create space

with experience.

Experience develops over time — and it all depends on what
we make of it. We have dedicated great market expertise to
building up our real estate portfolio over a span of 25 years.
Today, this balanced mix of assets puts us in a very stable
position. Over the years, we have leamed some important
lessons and are now able to act confidently in familiar markets.
That is the key to creating living space with know-how and it
makes us a competent partner by the side of our
customers, tenants and shareholders.
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We develop space

through partnerships.

We attach great importance to the quality of our properties.
We have therefore built up a pan-European network of
experts over the years. We reinforce our know-how with the
specialist knowledge of local professionals, and these
established partnerships deliver results that meet our
high expectations. By cooperating, we develop
living space with quality.
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We fill space

with imagination.

Anyone who has been successful for more than 25 years
knows a thing or two. We have seen a lot and know how to
make the most of our strengths. With the expertise we have
gathered over the decades, we are even able to imagine things
that do not yet exist. Imagination and intuition help us make
faster, surer decisions and identify market opportunities at
an early stage. With a clear objective in mind, we will con-
tinue along our path with confidence, shaping
the living space of tomorrow.
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We turmn space

into growing assets.

Real estate is an investment in the future. And the same
applies to our Share. Our investors expect us to
use their capital responsibly, and to preserve and increase
the value of their investment. For that purpose, we rely on a
balanced property portfolio with long-term value increases.
After several years of expansion, our focus is now on
boosting our portfolio return. To ensure that our shareholders
know what is being done with their capital, we maintain
ongoing, respectful and open communication. By investing

in the S IMMO Share, they are ultimately committing

fo living space as a capital investment.
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Management Report
Economic overview

Overall, the development of the global economy remained weak
in 2012, although the pace of growth varied greatly from region
to region. While economic activity picked up a bit in the US and
the emerging markets, the Southeastern European countries
struggled in particular with recession, which also impacted
growth in the entire region.

In the US, the risk of the fiscal cliff threatened to hinder global
economic growth, and conditions on the stock markets did not
ease until a tentative agreement was reached in the US budget
conflict. But the next challenge is bound to come when the
president, the House of Representatives and the Senate of the
United States have to reach a compromise regarding the debt
ceiling, spending cuts and tax policy. Meanwhile, the recovery of
the US real estate market continues and the unemployment rate
is the lowest it has been since 2008. The US economy is pro-
jected to grow by roughly 2% in 2013.

In the eurozone, the debt crisis, a lack of demand and high
unemployment were among the biggest problems in 2012. The
austerity programmes implemented by the affected countries,
the introduction of the European Stability Mechanism (ESM) and
the measures taken by the European Central Bank (ECB) had a
stabilising effect, and the tension on the financial markets
diminished. At the moment, the European economy is benefiting

from a less restrictive budgetary policy than that seen in 2012.
As a result, several EU member states may emerge from the
recession around the middle of the year.

In Austria, economic growth also remained below expectations
in 2012 as a result of international developments. However,
growth was higher than that of the eurozone. According to
reports by the Oesterreichische Nationalbank (OeNB), the
Austrian economy appears to have bottomed out at the
beginning of this year. In light of the weak stimulus from foreign
trade, companies are being conservative with their investments.
However, initial leading indicators point to a moderate improve-
ment in export and investment activity. The Austrian Institute of
Economic Research (WIFO) expects the Austrian economy to
grow by 1.0% in 2013. Erste Group projects a GDP growth of
0.9% for Austria.

The global economy may experience a slight recovery this year.
The World Bank expects global economic growth of roughly
2.4% and believes that the reversal will start in the emerging
markets. Once again, the World Bank sees the greatest risk in
the eurozone, where an upturn is not expected until the second
half of the year at the earliest. Economic experts from Erste
Group forecast growth of 0.4% for the eurozone in 2013.

Sources: Austrian Federal Economic Chamber (WKO), Austrian Institute of Economic Research (WIFO), Bank Austria, Budapest Research Forum, CBRE,
Cushman & Wakefield, Das Wirtschaftsblatt, Der Spiegel, Der Standard, Deutscher Wirtschaftsdienst, Die Presse, Erste Group, European Chain Hotels

Market Review, Hotstats.com by TRI Hospitality Consulting, Ifo World Economic Survey (WES), Institute for Advanced Studies (IHS), Jones Lang LaSalle,
Michael Schick Immobilien — Berliner Zinshausmarktbericht, Oesterreichische Nationalbank (OeNB), Stiddeutsche Zeitung, Vienna Tourist Board,

Wallstreet-online.de, World Bank, www.hospitalitynet.org
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Real estate market overview

AUSTRIA

Since 2008, prices for freehold flats and rents for apartments
on the Austrian property market, especially in the provincial
capitals, have increased markedly. This development is a result
on the one hand of the raised demand and the scarce supply,
and on the other hand of the increasing construction costs.
According to experts, a further upward movement in prices is
expected for 2013, which should, however, be much smaller
than in previous years. Furthermore, the main reason for buying
a flat is shifting more and more from investment to owner
occupation.

In 2012, the Viennese office market was characterised by a high
volume of completions — overall, 338,000 m? of office space
(including total refurbishments) came onto the market. Despite
the marked increase in take-up of 34.5% to about 345,000 m2,
vacancy rose to 6.6% in the course of the year. For 2013,
considerably less completions and a lower take-up of approxi-
mately 260,000 m? are expected.

For the most part, the hotel market in Vienna could absorb the
roughly 1,500 hotel rooms, which came onto the market in 2012.
In fact, there was even a slight increase in occupancy. At the
same time, Vienna saw a 2.2% year-on-year rise in overnight
stays in 2012. Room revenues also improved, advancing by
10.2% in the period from January to November 2012 compared
to 2011. The chain hotel segment posted a slight gain in occu-
pancy, which rose by 1.4 percentage points to 70.7%, and an
increase in net room rates, which climbed by 3.2% to roughly
EUR 135. RevPAR, the average revenue per available room,
grew by 5.3% to roughly EUR 96 in 2012. The average gross
operating profit (GOP) per available room increased by 4.4%
year-on-year.

The number of rooms in the mid-class and luxury segment is
expected to increase further in the coming years. Although the
number of overnight stays will also rise, it can be assumed that
the higher number of rooms will put increased investment
pressure on existing, older hotels as a result of greater
competition.
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GERMANY

In Berlin, demand for rental apartments and home ownership
has outstripped supply for years now, which is why rents and
prices continue to increase. According to forecasts, the
population of the German capital is expected to grow markedly
in the next few years, which should keep demand up, especially
in the lower and middle segments, and should result in more
building activity. The projected 10,000 new apartments per year
still do not match demand, so further increases in rents and
purchasing prices are expected unless the subsidy for residen-
tial development is expanded considerably. In recent years,
Berlin has become the most liquid market for rental apartment
buildings in Germany and therefore an important market for
investors. In 2012, five properties were sold per day there.

The German office market recorded stable developmentin 2012.
In the five most important cities (Berlin, Dusseldorf, Frankfurt,
Hamburg and Munich), take-up decreased by 7.8%. However,
vacancy declined year-on-year from 10.7% to 9.8% due to less
completions and the growing rededication of office space.
Demand is mainly focused on modern buildings in good
locations.

CEE

In 2012, approximately 23,000 m? were completed on the
Budapest office market, which is a 74% drop compared to 2011.
Annual leasing activity decreased 13% year-on-year and
amounted to about 345,000 m?. While new lease agreements
only accounted for 37%, renewals made up 50%. The vacancy
rate stood at 21% at the end of Q4 — a slight decrease compared
to Q3 but an increase of 180 basis points in comparison to the
19.2% at the end of 2011.

In Prague, eleven new A-class office buildings were delivered to
the market in 2012. Nevertheless, the vacancy rate remained
stable at around 12%. The trend of tenants moving to high-
quality offices and thereby leaving secondhand space behind is
likely to continue. Furthermore, the vacancy rate is expected to
increase in Q4 2013 due to 78,000 m? being scheduled for
completion in this quarter.
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On the Bratislava office market, demand is still mainly focused
on grade-A offices. In the previous year, the largest part of
leasing activity was made up of renewals and renegotiations,
which kept absorption rather low. New projects with 23,000 m?
of space are expected to be completed in 2013. However, only
a very small share is being built speculatively. As a result,
vacancy, which stands at 12.5% at the moment, is expected
to improve gradually.

In the second half of 2012, the chain hotel segment in Prague
continued the upward trend seen in the first six months of the
year. Overall, the average net room rates improved by 6.9% to
roughly EUR 78 and RevPAR rose by 7.5% to roughly EUR 53.
The gross operating profit (GOP) per available room showed a
remarkable gain of 15% compared to 2011. In the previous
years, the chain hotel segment was hit much harder by the
economic crisis in Prague than in other European cities. A large
surplus of hotel rooms led to a steep decline in occupancy and
room rates. The surplus appears to have been absorbed now,
and growing demand is once again allowing for significant
increases in room rates.

Budapest's hotel market saw stable development despite the
country’s economic and financial challenges. Bratislava remains
a challenging market. The average room rate fell by roughly 10%
to around EUR 62 in 2012.

SEE

On the Bulgarian office market, investors and tenants alike are
focusing on high-quality space and good prices. The market is
characterised by a high vacancy rate, limited growth, and
leasing activity being driven mainly by relocations to better
quality properties with attractive incentive packages. Supply will
continue to outstrip demand for some time to come. Among the
forecasts for 2013 are a constant decrease of the vacancy rate,
a further decline in new deliveries and an increase in rented
A-class office space.

Prime rents Prime yields Take-up 2012  Vacancy rate
(EUR/m2/month) (%) (m2) (%)
Office Retail Office Retail Office Office
Berlin 22.00' 300.00" 5.00' 4.50" 550,500° 8.5%
Bratislava 16.00" 80.00" 7.251 7.00" 102,900 12.58
Bucharest 18.50" 50.00" 8.25" 8.75" 235,9007 15.37
Budapest 20.00! 100.00" 7.50" 7.00" 344,977 21.0°
Hamburg 24.00' 250.00' 475" 4.30" 434,500° 7.8°
Prague 21.00' 85.00" 6.50" 6.25" 272100% 11.94
Sofia 12.50° 40.00° 9.50° 9.00° 96,900° 33.0°
Vienna 24.75' 300.00! 5.00' 425" 345,0007 6.6°
Zagreb 15.00' 22.50" 8.30' 8.25" 50,0000 15.510

* Data for shopping centres. Data for the remainder of the locations is for high street retail.

' CBRE, Market View, EMEA Rents and Yields, Q4 2012

CBRE, Market View, Vienna Office Market, Q4 2012
Budapest Research Forum, Office Market, Q4 2012

! CBRE, Market View, Prague Office Market, Q4 2012

CBRE, Market View, Office Market Germany, Q4 2012
Cushman & Wakefield, Marketbeat, Office Snapshot Bulgaria,
Q4 2012
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7 Cushman & Wakefield, Marketbeat, Office Snapshot Romania, Q4 2012
8 Cushman & Wakefield, Marketbeat, Office Snapshot Slovakia, Q4 2012
° Forton Bulgarian Office Market, Q4 2012

10 Jones Lang LaSalle, Onpoint, Zagreb City Report Q4 2012

" CBRE Prague



The Bucharest office market is still tenant-oriented, which is
indicated by landlords willing to offer various incentives. While
new leases only accounted for 28% of take-up in 2012, renewals
formed the largest part, at 68%. Although some new projects
have been postponed, the vacancy rate increased to 15.3% in
the course of the year because of tenants reducing space. Some
important leases will expire in 2013 and 2014, which on the one
hand should boost leasing activity and on the other hand,
together with the smaller number of speculative developments,
should support a slow decline in vacancy.

Total take-up on the Zagreb office market amounted to around
50,000 m? in 2012, which is a marked increase year-on-year.
The office stock increased almost 10% in the course of the year,
as approximately 80,000 m2 came onto the market. As a con-
sequence, vacancy increased from around 12% in 2011 to
15.5% at the end of Q4 2012.

Group structure and strategy

BUSINESS ACTIVITIES AND CORPORATE
STRUCTURE

S IMMO Group is an international real estate group headquar-
tered in Vienna, Austria. The parent company, S IMMO AG, is
Austria’s longest-established property investment company and
has been listed on the Vienna Stock Exchange since 1987. Its
long-term strategic core shareholders are Erste Group and
Vienna Insurance Group, two of the largest financial service

S IMMO Group
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Since Q4 2012, the Bulgarian retail market has had to deal with
the third wave of new shopping centres and consequently with
relocations and rent negotiations. The rental rates remained
stable but are likely to see downward pressure due to the new
projects.

Sales on the Romanian retail market increased continuously
over the year. Due to the reduced number of projects in the pipe-
line, expansion opportunities are limited. Nevertheless, large
international chains are still expanding because of advantages
such as turnover rents and fit-out contributions provided by
many landlords.

providers in Central and Southeastern Europe. A more detailed
breakdown of the shareholder structure can be found on page
16. In addition to its headquarters in Vienna, S IMMO Group also
has offices in Berlin and Budapest, and during the year under
review employed a total of 54 people in these three countries. In
Germany, S IMMO Group also owns a property management
company, Maior Domus. Additionally, there are numerous project
and property holding companies in Central and Southeastern
Europe that are part of the Group (see notes on pages 60—62).

S IMMO AG (Vienna)

S IMMO Germany GmbH S IMMO Hungary Kit.
(Berlin) (Budapest)

The Company focuses its activities on long-term income-
producing property investments through property acquisition,
letting, management and sales as well as property project devel-
opment in Austria, Germany and six countries in Central and
Southeastern Europe. S IMMO does not engage in any research
and development.

tungs GmbH (Berlin)

Maior Domus Hausverwal-

Various project and property
holding companies

All major management functions as well as the management of
the Austrian, Romanian, Bulgarian, Czech, Slovakian and
Croatian properties are performed by S IMMO AG in Vienna. The
subsidiaries in Germany and Hungary are responsible for local
asset management and letting activities.
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Portfolio structure

S IMMO concentrates its investment activities on four segments:
office (38.8%), retail (26.5%), residential (21.1%) and hotels
(13.6%). As at 31 December 2012, the portfolio consisted of a
total of 218 properties, with a total usable space of roughly
1,300,000 m? and a carrying value of EUR 1,872.3m. The largest
share of the property portfolio by market value is contributed by
Austria with 32.6% and Germany with 26.9%. Properties in SEE
make up 20.7%, and 19.8% come from CEE. The occupancy
rate is a highly satisfactory 92.0% (2011: 92.5%). The overall
rental yield comes 10 6.7% (2011: 6.7%).

Overview of rental yields

31 December
in % 2012

31 December

2011
Germany 6.2
Austria 5.6
SEE 8.5
CEE 7.6
Total 6.7

Market value
by region

(estimated values including %
carrying value of land)
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S IMMO currently serves over 6,800 tenants in its properties.
Nearly all rental agreements are tied to the euro, and commer-
cial rentals are also linked to the consumer price index. The
average length of rental agreements of our top 25 tenants is
around 8.8 years.

STRATEGY AND TARGETS

S IMMO’s success is based on the strength of its property
portfolio, which is split deliberately between four sectors. The
focus of investment is on properties in capital cities within
the European Union — from Berlin via Prague and Vienna to
Bucharest, allowing us to take advantage of differences in
property cycles. This strategy has proved successful in the past
and will continue to be followed in the coming quarters.

S IMMO takes its responsibilities to society very seriously,
particularly with respect to environmental, business and social
issues (more on pages 40-42). We attach particular importance
to outstanding quality and high property standards. Our
properties are managed holistically and sustainably throughout
their lives, so as to create added value for our investors. In
managing the capital entrusted to us, our watchwords are
prudence and responsibility, and we monitor our investments
very carefully, using established criteria and processes.

Market value

oy property
use type

Rotay 26.5%



Selection of new tenants 2012
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We concentrate on enhancing profitability, improving our key
performance indicators and further optimising the portfolio.
Therefore we continue to watch our markets very closely, with
the aim of disposing of properties in Germany at a profit and
making attractive new acquisitions. New lettings of revitalised
properties will also lead to increases in rental income.

Our property development activities in the coming months will
be focused on the inner-city project Quartier Belvedere Central
in Vienna. The first phase of the work is planned to begin
towards the end of the year 2013, with excavation of the con-
struction pit. At the same time, we shall be preparing selected
building plots in Central and Southeastern Europe for potential
development, so that construction can begin as soon as local
market conditions are favourable.

The aim in our financing is to bring the loan to value ratio down
to under 50% (as at 31 December 2012: 53%), and thus to push
up the equity ratio. The continuing repurchases of S IMMO
INVEST participating certificates will also contribute to this
goal. The already lean organisational structure will be further
optimised, which in turn will continue to increase efficiency.
Starting in 2012, we have also changed our distribution policy,
paying dividends to our shareholders so that they can share in
the Group’s success.
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MANAGEMENT AND CONTROL

In 2012, S IMMO AG’s Management Board consisted of three
members, who were jointly responsible for directing the Group’s
affairs. Since 01 February 2013, the Management Board has
consisted of two members. Their joint responsibilities are
determined by statutory provisions, the articles of incorporation
and the Group’s internal rules and procedures. The Management
Board is guided by the principles of responsible management,
and its objective is to increase earnings performance and
the value of the Group. In this, professional control and
management based on general business and property-related
indicators are of material importance. In the best interests of the
Group and in line with S IMMO’s commitment to good corporate
governance, the Management Board works closely with the
Supervisory Board. At year-end, the Supervisory Board consisted
of eight members. More information about the management
bodies can be found on pages 8-9. Details about compliance
with the Austrian Code of Corporate Governance are given on
pages 12—-15.
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Business performance and results

S IMMO AG brought the financial year 2012 to a very successful
conclusion, with major earnings indicators up in comparison
with the previous year. Net income for the year was 22.5%
higher, at EUR 26.0m (2011: EUR 21.2m), and EBIT increased
by 15.7% to EUR 106.8m (2011: EUR 92.3m). The excellent
results for the year and the best EBIT in S IMMO’s history are a
convincing demonstration of the Group’s efficient management.
Profit-oriented portfolio management, with successes in
subsequent letting, a high occupancy rate and ongoing cost
optimisation, are as important here as the high quality of the
properties. These operating successes help to compensate
for negative non-cash effects on the financial results and a
smaller property portfolio.

Gross profit

In 2012, rental income amounted to EUR 118.5m (2011:
EUR 125.9m). The decrease in rental income is attributable to
the sale of properties. Revenues from hotel operations (revenues
from hotels operated under management agreements) were

Total rental income”

EURm

B CEE

B SEE

B Austria
B Germany

-I- 3
N
=2}
-
o
=}
-
N
©
-
=
o

2009 2010 2011 2012

* not including Vienna Marriott Hotel and Budapest Marriott Hotel
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EUR 42.0m (2011: EUR 40.6m), resulting in a rise in gross profit
from hotel operations, which grew from EUR 9.0m to EUR 9.9m,
an increase of 9.1%.

Broken down by region, rental income was as follows: The
largest share came from Germany with 27.2%, followed by SEE
with 26.3%, Austria with 26.2% and CEE with 20.3%.

Rental income by property use type showed retail contributing
36.2%, followed by offices with 34.5%, residential with 22.5%
and hotels with 6.8%. Results from the Vienna and Budapest
Marriott Hotels, both operated under management agreements,
are recognised as revenues from hotel operations.

Overall, gross profit was EUR 104.4m, compared with
EUR 107.0m in the same period last year. As mentioned above,
the main reason for the slight reduction was the sale of proper-
ties, which reduced the portfolio by 4.9% (5.8% at fair values as
at 31 December 2011).

Rental income
oy region”

* not including Vienna Marriott Hotel and Budapest Marriott Hotel



Successful property sales

In 2012, S IMMO AG took advantage of the excellent climate in
the German and Austrian property markets and disposed of
21 properties at a profit. In detail, the disposals were as follows:

Vienna

1010 Vienna, Neutorgasse 4 — 8 (3 apartments)
1010 Vienna, Neutorgasse 2 (residential)

1050 Vienna, Brauhausgasse 3 — 5 (office)
1130 Vienna, Amalienstrasse 48 (office)

Linz
4020 Linz, Rainerstrasse 6 — 8 (office)

Berlin

10435 Berlin, Kollowitzstrasse 100 (residential)

10555 Berlin, Alt Moabit 47 (residential)

10559 Berlin, Stephanstrasse 53 (residential)

10717 Berlin, Bundesallee 31a (residential)

10997 Berlin, Zeughofstrasse 20 (residential)

13585 Berlin, Lynarstrasse 37 (residential)

13585 Berlin, Neumeister Strasse 12 (residential)

13629 Berlin, Voltastrasse 1 (residential)

14193 Berlin, Cunostrasse 52 — 53 /
Friedrichsruher Strasse 31 — 33 (residential)

Rental income
oy property

,50/0

* not including Vienna Marriott Hotel and Budapest Marriott Hotel
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Hamburg
20457 Hamburg, Mdnkedamm 7 (office)
22111 Hamburg, Billstedter Strasse 20 — 30 /
Oststeinbeker Weg 30 (residential)
22117 Hamburg, Moliner Landstrasse 117 — 121 (residential)
22337 Hamburg, Im Gruner Grunde 2 — 6 (residential)

Munich
81379 Munich, Tolzer Strasse 35 (office)

In the financial year 2012, total proceeds from these sales
came to EUR 132.2m (2011: EUR 46.5m), meaning that S IMMO
well exceeded its target of property sales of EUR 100m. The
resulting gains on disposal amounted to EUR 10.8m (2011:
EUR 11.6m). EBITDA for the year was EUR 98.8m (2011:
EUR 101.4m), and the EBITDA margin increased from 48.8% in
2011 to just over 50% in 2012. EBITDA in relation to the property
portfolio was 5.3%, which — compared with the international
industry average of 4% — is an extraordinarily good result. This
is also a proof of the efficient and profit-oriented asset
management.

Property valuations

The overall revaluation results in 2012 came to EUR 16.8m
(2011: EUR 0.1m), with differing trends region by region, just
as in the previous year. Properties in Austria and Germany
increased in value thanks to the continuing positive develop-
ments in both countries. In Central and Southeastern Europe,
however, properties fell in value.

Revaluation results

EURmM 2012 2011
Germany 6.0
Austria 9.3
Central Europe -4.6
Southeastern Europe -10.6
Total 0.1

This contributed to an increase in EBIT of EUR 14.5m to
EUR 106.8m in the financial year 2012 (2011: EUR 92.3m), an
impressive improvement of 15.7% and a record-breaking EBIT
for S IMMO. Compared with the last year before the crisis, 2007,
EBIT has risen by more than EUR 6.8m.
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Consolidated net income up to EUR 26.0m

Financing costs (excluding participating certificate results)
for the financial year 2012 amounted to EUR 61.8m (2011:
EUR 51.5m), including a non-cash foreign exchange loss of
EUR 2.0m (2011: foreign exchange gains of EUR 7.3m). The
loss was attributable to the appreciation of the Hungarian forint
and the Czech crown against the euro. The Romanian leu lost
value in relation to the euro. Foreign exchange effects have
hardly changed compared with the third quarter of 2012, since
in the fourth quarter the functional currency was changed from
the local currency to the euro for numerous companies (see
notes page 62), which decreased the effects of currency fluctua-
tions on the results.

In addition to the non-cash foreign exchange rate differences,
the financing costs were also adversely affected by non-cash-
effective derivative valuations amounting to around EUR 8.0m
(2011: EUR 0). This expense was a result of loan repayments
associated with various interest derivatives according to IFRS
hedge accounting rules. The income entitiements of participating
certificate holders for 2012 resulted in expenses of EUR 12.8m
(2011: EUR 11.2m).

The Group’s consolidated net income for the financial year 2012
came to a very satisfactory EUR 26.0m (2011: EUR 21.2m), a
marked increase of 22.5% despite the portfolio being 4.9%
smaller.

Funds from operations (FFO)

In the fourth quarter, FFO continued the positive development of
the first three quarters, and in the financial year 2012 amounted
to EUR 33.0m (2011: EUR 28.9m), an increase of 14.3% attri-
butable in part to lower interest rates. The FFO yield was an
impressive 10.1% of market capitalisation. In calculating FFO,
the results for the period are adjusted for non-cash items such
as depreciation and amortisation, valuation gains and losses
on interest rate hedges and exchange rate differences.
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Net operating income (NOI)

Because of the property disposals, NOI decreased slightly by
1.7% to EUR 97.5m (2011: EUR 99.3m). However, NOI margin
increased by 1.8 percentage points (pp) to 49.6%.

Net operating income as at 31 December

2012 2011 Change
NOI (EUR m) 97.5 99.3 -1.7%
NOI margin (%) 49.6 47.8 1.8 pp

Cash flow

The property disposals had an effect on cash flows. Operating
cash flow for the financial year 2012 was EUR 92.2m (2011:
EUR 96.0m). Cash flow from investing activities totalled
EUR 113.1m (2011: EUR 4.5m), and from financing activities
EUR -258.6m (2011: EUR -124.9m).

ASSETS AND FINANCES

The successful property sales meant that S IMMO Group's total
assets as at 31 December 2012 were down compared with
31 December 2011, from EUR 2,175.4m to EUR 2,013.8m.
Long-term property assets amounted to EUR 1,809.6m (2011:
EUR 1,906.7m) and short-term property assets amounted to
EUR 62.7m (2011: EUR 62.8m).

Cash and cash equivalents
At the balance sheet date, S IMMO Group’s cash and cash
equivalents totalled EUR 57.1m (2011: EUR 115.3m).

Shareholders’ equity

During the past financial year, equity (excluding minorities)
increased from EUR 474.0m to EUR 483.2m despite the dividend
payment. This also reflects the valuation of derivative financial
instruments and treasury shares not through profit or loss. The
minority interests in equity decreased from EUR 29.1m to
EUR 26.3m and for the most part relate to our partner in the
Serdika Center project.



Finance management

The implementation of Basel Ill guidelines has forced financial
institutions to adopt more restrictive lending policies. This has
resulted in higher margins on the one hand and lower lending
limits on the other. Despite this, S IMMO managed to succeed in
carrying out all its planned refinancing and borrowing activities.
S IMMO finances itself almost exclusively in euros. About 92% of
the long-term financial liabilities are at variable interest rates
pegged to the Euribor, and roughly 8% are at fixed interest rates.
S IMMO hedges against possible changes in interest rates on
variable rate loans using interest derivatives (caps, swaps,
collars).

The successful property disposals allowed for a further reduction
in financial liabilities: As at 31 December 2012, long-term finan-
cial liabilities amounted to EUR 973.4m (2011: EUR 1,103.4m),
and short-term financial liabilities totalled EUR 180.4m (2011:
EUR 208.9m). This resulted in a lower loan to value ratio of 53%
at balance sheet date (2011: 57%). The long-term financial
liabilities were matched by property assets of EUR 1,872.3m.

Balance sheet structure 2012

EURm

2,013.8 2,013.8

1404 I

1,284.1
Current H M Current
assets liabilities

M Non-current
liabilities

Non-current
assets

M Equity

1,865.5 509.5

Assets  Equity and

liabilities
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Maturities of financial liabilities:

EURm 2012 2011
Less than 1 year 208.9
1to 5 years 328.9
More than 5 years 774.5

Net asset value (NAV)

During the year, balance sheet NAV increased again, and at
31 December 2012 stood at EUR 7.17 per share (31 December
2011: EUR 6.96 per share). In the medium and long term, the
maturing interest hedging instruments will contribute to
increasing balance sheet NAV. EPRA NAV is also up, and as at
31 December 2012 stood at EUR 9.18 per share (31 December
2011: EUR 8.70 per share). EPRA NAV represents the value of
equity minus the effects that do not have a long-term impact on
the business activities of the Group, such as valuations of
derivatives and deferred taxes.

Capital and reserves

(without minorities) 474.0
Revaluation of other assets 15.5
Fair value of financial

instruments (not through

profit or loss) 73.5
Deferred tax liabilities 291
EPRA NAV 5921
EPRA NAV (EUR per share) 8.70
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Staff and responsibility

S IMMO’s properties cater to one of the most basic human
needs of living space: whether it is a home, a workplace or for
leisure time. As a result, the Group regards itself as being very
closely linked to society. This closeness forms the basis for
S IMMO's responsible approach to business, environment and
social issues.

EMPLOYEES

S IMMQO'’s employees are not only the Group’s most important
asset in ensuring long-term success, but also provide an
essential link to outside partners, shareholders, tenants and
other stakeholders. This is why SIMMO attaches great
importance to the continuing personal and professional
education of its staff. Particular emphasis is placed on broaden-
ing industry-specific knowledge, such as by becoming
members of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors
(RICS) or enrolling in real-estate-related master's degree
programmes. In 2012, the average expenditures per employee
for professional training and continuing education came to
approximately EUR 900.

Employee statistics

Employees

oy country

HUnQary 9

Total number of employees: 84
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Broad range of work-life balance options

A well-balanced professional and private life obviously has a
positive effect on employees’ motivation, health and commit-
ment. S IMMO is well aware of its responsibility in this respect
and offers a comprehensive range of programmes and schemes
to promote a pleasant working environment. These include
flexible working hours, medical services and meal vouchers.

Benefiting from diversity

As an international Group, S IMMO AG has employees from
a variety of countries, and it sees the resulting diversity of
languages and cultures as a valuable resource. Our corporate
culture is defined by lean management structures and close
interdepartmental cooperation, while still allowing for individual
growth and development. Proximity to the Management ensures
open and efficient communication.

o0 <
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- Employee 3
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HIGHEST PROPERTY STANDARDS

For S IMMO, satisfying corporate social responsibility starts with
the Group’s core business. Both in project development and
when renovating existing properties or enhancing their energy
efficiency, S IMMO applies the highest standards. This helps
reduce operating costs and emissions, which improves tenant
satisfaction and benefits the environment.

The extensive buildings refurbishment programme in Germany
continued in 2012, and renovation work on seven more
properties was completed. Since 2009, a total of 19 properties
have been renovated sustainably. This has helped push the
occupancy rate in Germany up from approximately 87% when
the programme started to 93% at present.

Case study: renovation of a 19th-century residential
building in Berlin Schéneberg

One of the properties renovated in 2012 was a 4,800 m? 19th-
century residential building in Berlin Schéneberg. The renovation
work included the fagade, the roof and the stairwell as well as
comprehensive renewal of the heating, electricity and plumbing
systems. Significant reductions in heat loss were achieved,
which in turn will reduce energy and operating costs. The
commercial space on the ground floor is fully let, and rents for
the high-end traditional apartments are significantly above the
market average.

Green buildings — model of the future

Over and above S IMMO’s high standards in general when
constructing or renovating properties, the Group places a high
value on green buildings. Environmentally friendly buildings not
only mean economical use of all resources and low life-cycle
costs but are increasingly demanded by both tenants and
legislators. S IMMO is well aware of this trend and pays close
attention to the sustainability criteria for international certifi-
cations, particularly in development projects.

S IMMO's Sun Offices building in Bucharest is not only BREEAM
certified (BRE Environmental Assessment Method — the world’s
leading voluntary certification process for real estate) but also
has a class-A energy efficiency certificate. Compared with older
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buildings, the resources used for heating, hot water, cooling,
ventilation and lighting and the associated CO, emissions are
significantly reduced, as are the operating costs. Sun Plaza
shopping centre, which is part of the same complex, is currently
undergoing the green building certification process.

Moreover, the shopping mall Serdika Center in Sofia, which was
awarded a DGNB certificate, won an SEE Green Building Award
at the EuropaProperty SEE Real Estate Awards 2012 — a further
proof of the building’s outstanding quality.

RESPONSIBLE BUSINESS PRACTICES

Long-term, sustainable capital growth is at the core of S IMMO's
strategy and is based on its high-quality property portfolio.
Whereby, the Group deliberately invests in four segments and
focuses on capital cities within the European Union. This allows
the Company to benefit strategically from property cycles.

S IMMO attaches particular importance to staying close to its
stakeholders, and this is expressed in a number of different
ways: Extensive, easy-to-understand information, mutual respect
and a culture of dialogue between equals are the basis
for successful, long-term
relationships. In 2012,
S IMMOQO’s mission state-
ment was developed in a
joint process. It is intended
to serve as a guide for the
staff, and at the same time
to transmit the Group’s
values to the outside world. These include in particular the
strength of S IMMOQ'’s team, which is known for its integrity, sense
of tradition, quality, responsibility and consistency.

http://mwww.simmoag.at/en/
missionstatement

To ensure a maximum of fairess to our partners, and to avoid
unlawful and ethically questionable business practices, S IMMO
has strict internal guidelines for all procedures. S IMMO’s most
important regulations and business principles are currently
being brought together in a code of conduct. In addition, since
2007, the Group has subscribed to the Austrian Code of
Corporate Governance.
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For more information on S IMMO’s
mission statement, please visit:
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY In 2012, the following additional projects were supported:
S IMMO'’s social activities are inspired by the principle of provid- W
ing shelter and security: It supports organisations that provide
care and accommaodation to people in need of new homes. In
these activities, the Group places a high value on long-term

In cooperation with Caritas:
— Community centre in Esztergom, Hungary
— House of hope and counselling, Romania
— Day centre and mobile care in Pokrovan, Bulgaria
Sonnenmond children’s hospice, Austria

B Vienna Kunstsupermarkt art sales project, Austria
In 2012, SIMMO also B Turn On architecture festival in Vienna, Austria
focused on three student
projects. Students from
Nottingham Trent University
spent a week in Vienna and

collaboration. [ |

More information on our CSR projects:
www.simmoag.at/en/csr

Outlook for 2013
In 2013, S IMMO will continue to work with Caritas, the Vienna

www.kunstsupermarkt.at
www.caritas.at

www.nextroom.at/turn-on_12
www.sonnenmond.at

Bratislava and were given
comprehensive insight into

S IMMO's real estate busi-
ness and markets. For
several years, S IMMO has been collaborating with Danube
University Krems, and the annual module abroad on portfolio
optimisation — part of the real estate master's degree pro-
gramme — is held at S IMMO Germany in Berlin. Friedrich
Wachernig, member of S IMMO’s Management Board, also
gave a talk at the University of Applied Sciences Wiener
Neustadt, in which he gave students a personal insight into day-
to-day operations in the real estate business.

Risk and opportunity management

As an international real estate investment company, S IMMO
Group is confronted with a wide variety of risks and opportuni-
ties that can influence both its operational business activities
and its strategic corporate management. Through the ongoing
identification, analysis, monitoring and management of risks and
opportunities, the Group seeks to recognise negative develop-
ments and potentially profitable opportunities in good time so
that they can be taken into account in its decision-making
processes.
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Kunstsupermarkt and the Sonnenmond children’s hospice. On
the environmental front, the Group will participate in the City of
Vienna's OkoBusiness Check, where the internal flows of energy,
raw materials and waste are analysed and suggestions for
possible improvements are made. Corporate volunteering
projects in cooperation with Caritas are also planned.

Contacts

For more information on our CSR activities, please contact
S IMMO’s Corporate Communications team by phone on

+43 (0)50 100-27522 or by e-mail at media@simmoag.at.

The Group's business model reflects deliberate investment
activities in four segments (office, retail, residential and hotels).
Hereby the Company manages and invests in properties
in capital cities within the European Union — from Berlin to
Bucharest. The purpose of this diversification is to spread risks
broadly and to achieve the maximum number of opportunities.
Opportunities result from the differing real estate cycles of indi-
vidual property use types, but also from regional variations in
economic development.



The Group's risk management comprises internal regulations
and guidelines, regular reports at meetings with the Management
Board, and standardised, groupwide control measures which
serve to support the early identification, monitoring and control
of risks. Major risk-related decisions are the responsibility of the
Management Board, and investment projects above a certain
size also require approval by the Supervisory Board. Both
management bodies are kept informed about all risks through
the Internal Control System.

The risks and opportunities discussed in this section have been
reanalysed. For the most part, they are unchanged compared
with the previous financial year.

Internal Control System (ICS)
The Internal Control System is used to monitor and control the
following aspects of key business activities:

B the effectiveness and economic efficiency of operating
activities,

B the reliability of financial reporting, and

B compliance with applicable statutory provisions.

Together with Internal Audit and compliance with stock exchange
requirements, the ICS constitutes the Group’s internal monitor-
ing system. Core processes — in particular those relating to
Group financial reporting — are set out in the internal processes
database. This includes a risk management matrix, in which the
relevant processes, the potential individual risks and the
pertinent control procedures are defined.
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The major ICS features relevant to the accounting process are:

B Clear, written division of responsibilities between Finance
and Accounting and other functions (e.g. Treasury)

B Guidelines for the application of uniform accounting and
valuation approaches in the consolidated financial statements,
which are set out in the Group’s IFRS Manual

B Assessment of risks that could lead to a material misstate-
ment of transactions in the financial statements (e.g. incorrect
classification of items in the Statement of Financial Position or
the Income Statement)

B Appropriate control mechanisms built into the automated
preparation of the consolidated financial statements

B Internal reporting to the Management and Supervisory
Boards, including quarterly reports, segment and liquidity
reports, and individual property reports when required

B Process-oriented control activities including a regular review
of the correctness and completeness of accounting information
and analysis of variances.

Internal Audit

The Group’s Internal Audit is responsible for commissioning and
coordinating audits of core business processes at S IMMO AG
and its subsidiaries. These audits cover the effectiveness of
these processes, existing risks and control weaknesses, and
potential improvements in efficiency in cycles stretching over
several years. The audits are carried out exclusively by reputable,
external experts (Ernst & Young) and are based on the annual
operational audit plan and the strategic multi-year plan, which
are approved by the Management Board. The results of the
audits are submitted to the Management Board. The audit plan
and the results of the audits are also regularly communicated to
the Audit Committee of the Supervisory Board.
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Risk Overview

Group strategic risks Real estate risks Other risks

Business environment
and industry risk

Property portfolio risk

Letting risk

Investment risk Development risk

Capital market risk Property valuation risk

Liquidity risk Tax risk

Interest rate risk Environmental risk

Financing risk

Legal risk

Exchange rate risk

INDIVIDUAL RISKS

Group strategic risks
S IMMO'’s business strategy entails strategic risks, which in turn
can strongly influence the Group’s strategy.

Business environment and industry risks

The economic climate in S IMMO's various markets influences
the development of the corresponding real estate industry. Since
the economic situation is subject to constant change, it is difficult
to accurately foresee all of the risks that will arise. The Group
currently sees the demand for office and retail space in Austria
as stable or declining slightly, although S IMMO continues to
enjoy an excellent occupancy rate. In Berlin, the Group is
currently benefiting from a strong influx of people and the high
degree of individual mobility. This means that the residential
property market will continue to be attractive in 2013. Demand
for office space in Germany is stable. The Group's hotel
operations are also performing well. Property markets in Hungary
and Southeastern Europe remain challenging — particularly in
Bulgaria, where economic recovery will still take some time.
Bucharest is currently showing signs of moderate improvement.
There is a slight increase in demand, and the outlook for the
coming years is encouraging. The difficulties in Bulgaria could
have negative repercussions on the letting of office space and
could also depress expected rental levels in the shopping
centre.
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Investment risk

Another major element of the Group’s strategy is to focus on
recognising potential investment risks in the selection of proper-
ties. In the preparatory phases of investment decisions, S IMMO
Group attaches great importance to comprehensive internal and
external analysis. The factors considered include the attractive-
ness of the location, local infrastructure and the credit ratings of
tenants. There are also predetermined investment volume
thresholds, above which investments require approval by the
Supervisory Board. In the coming quarters, the Group will be
focusing on the inner-city development project Quartier
Belvedere Central, which centres on the new Vienna Central
Station. In cooperation with its partners, S IMMO will be develop-
ing approximately 130,000 m? of gross floor space in several
stages. Interest in this project is substantial, and preliminary
discussions have already got off to a good start. Individual plots
of development land in Central and Southeastern Europe are
also being prepared for potential building activities in the future.
In these cases, construction work will only begin as and when
any appropriate pre-letting has been completed and local
market conditions have improved. In this regard, there are no
short-term plans for any sizeable investments yet.

Capital market risks

The capital markets are of particular importance to S IMMO.
The Group takes every care to strengthen investors’ trust in
the SIMMO Share through transparent, timely and efficient
communication. To ensure compliance with the requirements of
the capital markets, S IMMO Group has introduced clearly
defined compliance regulations with a code of good conduct for
all staff and management bodies.



Real estate risks

Economically challenging times can lead to a decline in tenants’
credit ratings, increases in outstanding rents, rising vacancy
rates and loss of rental income.

Property portfolio risks

S IMMO Group counters property portfolio risks with deliberate
investments in four segments and a focus on capital cities within
the European Union. In the financial year 2012, these risks were
not the same in all segments and countries. The residential
property market in Austria and Germany performed positively,
for example, which meant a reduction of the relevant risks in
the Group’s portfolio. Additionally, from a risk management
perspective, the focus of business activities on countries with
long-term development potential and on prime locations in
capital cities within the European Union has contributed
materially to the stability of the portfolio as a whole.

Letting risks

Letting risks are closely linked with the general economic
environment in the various markets, which in turn makes these
risks difficult to predict accurately. Present political and eco-
nomic developments in Hungary, Romania and Bulgaria, for
example, have resulted in riskier situations there than in the
other EU countries. The emphasis on long-term tenancy agree-
ments had a positive effect on the occupancy rate in the past
financial year. As at 31 December 2012, the occupancy rate was
92.0%. The current economic climate and the published
economic forecasts mean that letting risk (including renewal of
existing agreements) will continue to be a factor to be reckoned
with this year. This applies especially to the office buildings in
Budapest and Sofia. In our two shopping centres in South-
eastern Europe, we continue to be confronted with rent defaults.
In some cases, the renewal of rental agreements will involve
difficult negotiations.

Development risks

Development activities over the coming months will be con-
centrated on the Quartier Belvedere Central project, which is
centred on the new Vienna Central Station and is part of one of
the largest urban development projects currently under
construction in Europe. In this case, the risk has been minimised
because the project is in a prime location in Vienna and it is
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being developed in cooperation with partners. Another favourable
factor is that the development will take place in several stages.
There is substantial interest in this project, which is why initial
negotiations with potential tenants are promising. Our existing
plots of development land in Central and Southeastern Europe
are being prepared for potential building activities in the future.
These preparations include obtaining zoning and building
permits and organising architecture competitions. Construction
work will only begin when the local market conditions permit and
a specific level of pre-letting is achieved.

Property valuation risk

Property valuation risk is the risk of possible losses in value
of the portfolio as a result of changed macroeconomic
circumstances — outside the Group's control — and of circum-
stances affecting specific properties. S IMMO strives to identify
possible risks in advance and to minimise any negative effects
through optimal property and portfolio management. Changes
in market values can have an adverse effect not only on profit,
but also on equity and consequently on the share price and on
the Group’s credit rating.

Financial risks

For S IMMO Group, management of financial risks is principally
concerned with the effects of liquidity risks, changes in interest
rates, financing risks and currency risks.

Liquidity risks

In order to ensure adequate liquidity, the Group’s Financing
department works closely with Project Development, Asset
Management and Acquisitions to coordinate the Group's cash
flows, to test their plausibility and to continuously adapt them on
the basis of ongoing liquidity planning. However, more restrictive
equity and liquidity regulations for banks and the ongoing euro
crisis could make refinancing difficult. Despite its mainly
long-term loan agreements, S IMMO may be affected in parti-
cular when it comes to loan extensions and refinancing (see also
financing risks). This risk can primarily arise when loan extensions
or refinancings are delayed, or when the amounts available turn
out to be smaller than expected. There are also liquidity risks if
properties cannot be sold on time or have to be sold at lower
prices.
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Interest rate risk

External borrowings bear the risk of changing interest rates.
For the moment, the European Central Bank is expected to leave
the base rate largely unchanged. However, it cannot be ruled out
that — because of the difficult economic situation and the
tightened equity and liquidity requirements introduced with
Basel Il — banks will increase their spreads. S IMMO Group
reduces the interest rate risk in the long term through interest
rate hedging on its variable rate loans. As at 31 December 2012,
8% of loans were fixed-rate and 92% were variable rate loans —
for the most part pegged to the three-month Euribor. S IMMO
hedges its variable rate loans with derivative financial
instruments (swaps, caps and collars). At the end of the year, all
of the variable rate loans were hedged. The stress tests (see
pages 89-90 for details) show that S IMMO Group is exposed
to approximately one-third of potential interest rate changes.
This means that despite hedging with derivative financial
instruments, the Group would be exposed to higher financing
costs if interest rates rise.

Financing risks

The banking sector continues to be under strain, which could
lead to more restrictive bank lending policies, making refinanc-
ing more difficult. A rise in spreads is also a possibility. S IMMO
Group reduces these financing risks by spreading its borrowing
among different lenders (at the balance sheet date, 23 individual
banks) and through long-term external financing. All borrowings
must be approved by the Management Board or the Supervisory
Board based on a system in which loans are graded according
to their amount. As at 31 December 2012, the non-current
liabilities to banks had an average weighted residual maturity of
more than 7.8 years. This long-term borrowing is standard
practice in the industry. Compliance with the contractual con-
ditions of the loans is constantly monitored by S IMMO Group in
close cooperation with the lending institutions. In the current
economic climate, however, there is increasing risk of covenant
violations (clauses in loan agreements that are based, for
example, on the loan to value ratio). The Group ensures that the
correct ratio is maintained between the amounts of loans and
the market values of the properties (loan to value ratio). For the
financial year under review, the Group’s overall loan to value
ratio was 53%. The target in the medium term is a loan to value
ratio of under 50%, thereby reducing the cost of financing and
the burden on the cash flow. Despite precise monitoring of
financing instruments and relevant parameters, the possibility of
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S IMMO being confronted with risks in refinancing cannot be
excluded should the economy and the financing environment
take a turn for the worse.

Exchange rate risks

S IMMO Group’s loans are almost entirely denominated in
euros, and rental agreements are almost without exception
linked to the euro. For this reason, exposure to direct cash-
effective foreign exchange rate risks is minimal. However, short-
term non-cash exchange rate exposures do affect the balance
sheet. In the financial year 2012, these effects resulted in a loss
of EUR 2.0m, which is disclosed as part of the financial results of
S IMMO Group. An indirect medium-term exchange rate risk
caused by changes in currency values cannot be excluded in
certain affected markets.

Other risks

Tax risks

As an international real estate investment company, S IMMO
Group is exposed to a multitude of varying, continually changing
national tax regimes. Changes in local tax conditions (e.g.
property-related taxes, sales tax, income tax) can lead to
disproportionately high tax burdens and consequently constitute
an earnings risk. In Austria, the first Stability Act 2012 (StabG)
brought fundamental reforms to the taxation of property port-
folios, which could have an impact on future transactions or
lettings. Additionally, in 2012 the sales tax was increased in
several countries (Hungary, the Czech Republic and Croatia). In
Germany, the property transfer tax was changed. By con-
tinuously working with local experts, S IMMO strives to identify
possible consequences early on, take them into account when
making decisions and make appropriate accounting provisions
for all known risks.

Environmental risks

Environmental risks can arise in connection with both standing
properties and development projects. For example, amended
legislation can make it necessary to remove or replace building
materials. There is also the possibility that hazardous materials
will need to be removed from development land, which in turn
can lead to higher costs. S IMMO protects itself against these
risks by carrying out detailed site analyses when acquiring or
investing in property and if necessary by obtaining guarantees.
S IMMO also acts responsibly by insisting on high-quality build-
ing materials and construction methods, both with its standing
properties and with development projects.



Legal risks

Due to its business activities, S IMMO is exposed to a variety of
legal risks, for example, as a result of unclear statutory require-
ments or incomplete agreements. This can sometimes lead to
litigation. S IMMO minimises this risk by involving the Group’s
legal department in all major business transactions and by
always taking professional local legal advice. There is currently
open litigation mainly in Germany and Romania. For all legal
risks, appropriate accounting provisions have been made as far
as needed.

OVERALL STATEMENT ON THE RISK SITUATION

Overall, it is expected that the business climate in 2013 will con-
tinue to be difficult. Recovery is not expected until the second
half of the year, and in some cases not until 2014. Economic
conditions — above all, the problems in Europe, the USA and

Outlook

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER
BALANCE SHEET DATE

In the first quarter 2013, S IMMO also took advantage of the
good sales opportunities in the German property market and
sold one residential building in Berlin and one office building in
Bremen.

Moreover, in the first quarter, a further 65,604 shares in the
amount of EUR 310,000 and 73,929 participating certificates in
the amount of EUR 5,467,000 were repurchased.

5

<> IMMO

China — will continue to influence capital markets. Shares are
currently benefiting from less attractive government bonds,
expansionary monetary policies, low interest rates and the
weakness of the euro.

The continuing economic problems in some of S IMMO’s
markets affect mainly property valuations, rental income, financ-
ing costs and the ability to borrow in the capital markets, the
Group’s own liquidity, and our partners’ ability to meet their
financial obligations. There are also risks attached to individual
properties. S IMMO guards against these risks by taking appro-
priate specific measures and seeking to minimise negative
effects on earnings performance and operating activities.
Deliberate investments in four segments and in capital cities
within the European Union and careful monitoring of relevant key
indicators for each property help to keep potential risks to a
minimum.

ECONOMIC CLIMATE

In 2012, the European economy was overshadowed by the debt
crises experienced by a number of member states. For the euro-
zone, the most important event was the entering into effect of the
European Stability Mechanism (ESM) in October 2012. Although
the recession in the eurozone grew worse towards the end of the
year, there are initial signs that the economy is stabilising. Many
economic experts predict that the recession will end in the first
half of 2013 and will be followed by a period of moderate eco-
nomic growth. For Austria and Germany, Erste Group predicts
GDP growth of 0.9%. It anticipates GDP growth of 0.4% for the
eurozone and 2.0% for the USA in 2013. Thanks to gradual
improvements in the labour and housing markets, an increase in
US consumer spending could bolster global growth. In parti-
cular, exports from the eurozone should benefit from this
development. Forecasts by the Organisation for Economic
Co-operation and Development (OECD) also support this
assessment.
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The World Bank expects the mild recession in the eurozone to
continue in 2013, with negative economic growth of 0.1%. It
does, however, consider that the danger of a severe financial
crisis has largely been averted, since the member states and the
European Central Bank (ECB) have taken the appropriate
steps.

In addition to Cyprus, Greece, ltaly and Spain, Southeastern
Europe is also suffering under the current economic climate.
Growth in the region has slowed. In the years before the financial
crisis, economic growth in the former Eastern Bloc countries
was an average of three to four percentage points higher than in
the rest of Europe. That average is now down to around
1.5 percentage points. For 2013, the International Monetary
Fund (IMF) predicts an increase in GDP of 2.5% for Romania
and 1.5% for Bulgaria. However, for Austrian banks and
insurance companies, Eastern Europe will remain a growth
market. Raiffeisen Bank International (RBI) sees the greatest
potential for growth in Poland, Russia, the Czech Republic,
Slovakia and Romania.

Stronger growth is expected worldwide in 2014 — Erste Group is
predicting 1% for the eurozone, 1.7% for Austria and 1.5% for
Germany. The USA should do significantly better: The experts
are predicting an increase of 2.5%.
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BUSINESS DEVELOPMENTS

In 2013 — as in 2012 — S IMMO Group will again focus on
improving earnings indicators. We will therefore continue to take
advantage of the favourable conditions in the German residen-
tial market in order to successfully dispose of properties and to
check attractive real estate opportunities and purchase where
appropriate. We also expect continuing success in new lettings
and higher rental income from refurbished objects in Germany.
In Southeastern Europe, the focus will remain on letting the two
office buildings in Sofia and Bucharest. While Bucharest is
showing signs of economic recovery, the market for office space
in Sofia continues to pose a challenge. We are also planning to
continue to streamline the Group’s organisation and further
reduce costs. On the financing side, we are aiming to reduce the
loan to value ratio to under 50% in the medium term.

In our Quartier Belvedere Central development project located
next to the new Vienna Central Station, S IMMO and its
partners will be constructing a mixture of office, hotel and retail
properties with a gross floor space of around 130,000 m2.
Detailed negotiations with potential tenants are already under
way. The first phase of development may begin towards the end
of this year with the excavation of the construction pit. In addition,
individual plots of development land in Central and Southeastern
Europe are being prepared for potential building activities in the
future. The necessary zoning permits are being acquired and
architecture competitions are being held so that construction
work can begin as soon as local market conditions become
favourable.

In the capital markets, we are continuing with our share
repurchase programme and our S IMMO INVEST participating
certificate repurchase programme until both expire at the end of
June 2013.
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Disclosure pursuant to section 243a Austrian Commercial Code (UGB)

Under section 243a Austrian Commercial Code (UGB), the fol-
lowing information must be disclosed:

1. The issued share capital of the Company is EUR
247,509,361.86, divided into 68,118,718 no par value bearer
shares. All shares are of the same class.

2. Thearticles of incorporation contain the following provisions:
The voting rights of each shareholder at the Annual General
Meeting are limited to 15% of the issued share capital. For this
purpose, shares held by companies that together constitute a
group for the purposes of section 15 Austrian Stock Corporation
Act (AktG) are to be aggregated, as are shares held by third
parties for the account of a relevant shareholder or the account
of a company forming part of a group with that shareholder.
Holdings of shares by shareholders exercising their voting rights
in concert in virtue of an agreement or as part of coordinated
behaviour are also to be aggregated.

3. On 24 September 2009, the Management Board received
notification under section 91(1) Austrian Stock Exchange Act
(BorseG) from Tri-Star Capital Ventures Ltd., an international
investment company, that this company had increased its share-
holding in Sparkassen Immobilien AG (now S IMMO AG) to
11.15% of the issued share capital with voting rights. The Com-
pany was also informed on 20 April 2009 by s Versicherung AG,
a company forming part of Vienna Insurance Group, that its
interest in Sparkassen Immobilien AG (now S IMMO AG) had
reached 10.27%, thereby exceeding the 10% threshold for
notification under section 91(1) BérseG. Finally, on 24 July 2012,
the Company received notification from Erste Group Bank AG
that this company had increased its interest in S IMMO AG, and
that as of 20 July 2012, the 10% threshold foreseen under
section 91(1) BorseG had been exceeded; Erste Group Bank
AG’s directly and indirectly held voting rights then amounted
to 10.12%.

4. There are no shares with special control rights.

5. Employees who are shareholders exercise their voting
rights at the Annual General Meeting directly.

6. The Management Board consists of two, three or four
members. The members of the Management Board are appoint-
ed by the Supervisory Board by a three-quarters majority of the
votes cast. Appointment to the Management Board is open only
to those under the age of 65 at the time of appointment. The
Supervisory Board consists of a maximum of ten members
elected by the Annual General Meeting. Resolutions proposing
increases in share capital that change the articles of incorpora-
tion are passed by a simple majority of the votes cast at the
Annual General Meeting and by a simple majority of the share-
holders voting on a resolution.

7. (@) In accordance with section 169 AkiG, the Management
Board, with the approval of the Supervisory Board, is authorised
for a period of five years dating from the registration of this
change in the articles of incorporation, that is, until 19 October
2017, to increase the share capital of the Company by up to
EUR 123,754,680.93 in one or more tranches by issuing up to
34,059,359 ordinary bearer shares for a minimum issue price of
100% of the proportionate share of the issued capital. The issue
may be for cash or for contributions in kind (not including contri-
butions in kind made in exchange for the issue by the Company
of participating certificates and entitlements of such certificates,
or other entitlements). With the agreement of the Supervisory
Board, the Management Board is authorised to fix the issue
price, the terms and conditions of the issue and all other details
of the implementation of the capital increase. In the event of
a capital increase for contributions in kind (not including
contributions in kind made in exchange for the issue by the
Company of participating certificates and entitlements of such
certificates, or other entitlements), the Management Board is
authorised, with the approval of the Supervisory Board, to
exclude shareholder subscription rights in part or in full.
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(b) At the Annual General Meeting on 01 June 2012, the
Management Board was authorised under the provisions of
section 65(1)(8) AktG for a period of thirty months from the date
of the passing of the resolution, that is, until 01 December 2014,
to acquire shares in the Company up to the statutory maximum
of 10% of the Company’s share capital and, if appropriate, to
cancel them. The Management Board was also authorised for a
period of five years from the date of the passing of the resolution,
that is, until 01 June 2017, with the approval of the Supervisory
Board, to dispose of own shares (treasury shares) in a manner
other than through the stock exchange or through a public offer
and under exclusion of shareholders’ subscription rights.

(c) Inaccordance with section 159(2)(1) AktG, the authorised
capital is conditionally increased by up to EUR 123,754,680.93
by the issue of up to 34,059,359 new ordinary bearer shares
(conditional capital). The conditional capital increase will only be
put into effect to the extent that owners of convertible loan stock
issued on the basis of the resolution of the Annual General
Meeting on 01 June 2012 exercise their rights of conversion or
subscription. The issue price and the conversion and/or sub-
scription ratio are to be calculated on the basis of the market
price of the Company’s shares in accordance with standard
market practice; the issue price may not be less than the propor-
tionate interest in the share capital. With the approval of the
Supervisory Board, the Management Board is authorised to
determine all other details of the implementation of the con-
ditional capital increase (in particular the issue price, the rights
attached to the shares and the date of entitlement to dividends).
The Supervisory Board is authorised to amend the articles of
incorporation as required in connection with the issue of shares
out of conditional capital or when the time authorised for the use
of such capital expires.
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(d) Atthe Annual General Meeting on 01 June 2012, in accord-
ance with section 174 AktG, the Management Board was again
authorised within five years of the passing of the resolution, that
is, until 01 June 2017, to issue for cash, in one or more tranches,
convertible loan stock carrying the right of conversion or
subscription to up to 34,059,359 ordinary bearer shares in the
Company representing a proportionate interest in the share
capital of the Company of up to EUR 123,754,680.93. The
Management Board was also authorised, with the approval of
the Supervisory Board, to exclude subscription rights of existing
shareholders to convertible loan stock, and to determine all
other terms and conditions of the convertible bonds, including
their issue price and the conversion procedures.

8. No significant agreements have been made in which the
Company is involved and under which control of the Company
will change hands, be modified or cease as a result of a take-
over offer.

9. There are no special compensation agreements between
the Company and members of the Management and Super-
visory Boards or the Company’s employees that would take
effect in the event of a public takeover offer.



Consolidated financial statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

CHANGES IN CONSOLIDATED EQUITY

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S MmO

52

54

55

56

58

59

051



ANNUAL REPORT 2012 | CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Consolidated statement of financial position

as at 31 December 2012

Assets LoTEe

EUR '000

CANBLETeTnalo @20 R Pl 31 December 2011

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Properties held as financial investments

Investment properties 3.1.1. 1,661,226 1,716,899
Development projects and undeveloped land 3.1.1. 20,157 55,480
1,681,383 1,772,379
Owner-operated properties 3.1.2. 128,202 134,321
Other plant and equipment 3.1.2. 7,034 7,472
Intangible assets 3.1.2. 165 165
Goodwill 3.1.3. 10 10
Interests in associated companies 9,382 8,266"
Group interests 774 730"
Deferred tax assets 3.1.12. 38,504 33,532
1,865,454 1,956,875
CURRENT ASSETS
Properties held for sale 3.1.4. 62,700 62,800
Inventories 3.1.5. 4,150 7,097
Trade receivables 3.1.6. 10,560 9,943
Other accounts receivable 3.1.6. 8,116 15,987
Other assets 5,776 7,416
Cash and cash equivalents 3.1.7. 57,076 115,260
148,378 218,503
2,175,378
" Adjusted
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EqUIty and ||ab|||t|eS NOTES 31 December 2011
EUR '000

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 3.1.8.
Share capital 244,705 246,341
Capital reserves 73,005 73,416
Other reserves 165,463 154,285
483,173 474,042
Non-controlling interests 3.1.9. 29,088
503,130
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Subordinated participating certificate capital 3.1.10. 222,483 230,797
Financial liabilities 52.2. 973,426 1,103,371
Provisions 3.1.11. 9,853 7,892
Other liabilities 9,358 9,717
Deferred tax liabilities 3.1.12. 68,966 62,600
1,284,086 1,414,377
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities 52.2. 180,352 208,888
Trade payables 6,807 9,900
Other liabilities 33,091 39,083
220,250 257,871
2,175,378
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Consolidated income statement

for the year ended 31 December 2012

Revenues 3.2.1.

Rental income 118,535 125,943

Revenues from operating costs 36,170 41,257

Revenues from hotel operations 41,971 40,612

196,676 207,812

Other operating income 7,737
Expenses directly attributable to properties 3.2.2. -67.037 -76,982
Hotel operating expenses 3.2.2. -32,112 -31,576
Gross profit 104,387 106,991
Income from property disposals 132,230 46,500
Carrying value of property disposals -121,390 -34,916
Gains on property disposals 3.2.8. 10,840 11,584
Management expenses 3.2.4. -16,408 -17,169
Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and
amortisation (EBITDA) 98,819 101,406
Depreciation and amortisation 3.2.5. -8,765 -9,266
Gains on property valuation 3.2.6. 16,756 146
Operating result (EBIT) 106,810 92,286
Financing costs 3.2.7. -61,803 -51,458
Participating certificates result 3.1.10. -12,809 -11,185
Net income before tax (EBT) 32,198 29,643
Taxes on income 3.1.12. -8,398
Consolidated net income 21,245
of which attributable to shareholders in parent company 20,034
of which attributable to non-controlling interests 1,726 1,211
Earnings per share

Undiluted = diluted 3.2.8. 0.36 0.29
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for the year ended 31 December 2012

EUR '000 2011
Consolidated net income 21,245
Change in value of cash flow hedges -24,224
Income tax related to other comprehensive income 5,049
Reclassification of derivative valuation effects through net income 0
Foreign exchange rate differences -8,758
Total comprehensive income -6,688

of which attributable to shareholders in parent company -5,900

of which attributable to non-controlling interests -788
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Consolidated cash flow statement

for the year ended 31 December 2012

EUR '000

Net income before tax (EBT)

Gains/losses on property valuation

2011

29,643

Depreciation and amortisation

146

Gains/losses on property sales

9,266

Cash flow from sale of inventories

-11,684

Taxes on income paid

7,714

Participating certificates result

-1,546

Net interest

11,185

Operating cash flow

Changes in net current assets

51,458

Receivables and other assets

95,990

Provisions and other non-current liabilities

20,102

Current liabilities

-2,162

Cash flow from operating activities

Cash flow from investing activities

-8,047

Investments in property portfolio

105,883

-11,970

Investments in tangible and intangible assets

-30,876

-2,213

Disposals of/investments in financial investments

-1,226

-940

Disposals of properties and property holding companies

-3,895

127,045

Interest received and other financial income

38,786

1,217

Cash flow from investing activities

056

1,736

113,139

4,525



EUR '000

Consolidated cash flow statement (cont.)

Cash flow from financing activities

Purchase of own participating certificates

-9,538

Purchase of own shares

-2,048

Cash flows from increases/decreases in non-controlling interests

-2,648

Increases/decreases in financing

-174,296

Dividend payment

-6,767

Distribution to participating certificates

11,186

Interest paid

-52,138

Cash flow from financing activities

Cash and cash equivalents at 01 January

-258,621

115,260

Net change in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December "
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2011

-23,684

-1,330

-1,550

-28,348

0

-13,869

-56,088

-124,869

129,721

14,461

115,260

" The effects of foreign exchange translation differences on cash and cash equivalents are not material and are therefore not disclosed separately.
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Changes in consolidated equity

Foreign
currency Hedge Sub-total Non-

Share Capital translation accounting Other S IMMO controlling
EUR 000 capital reserves reserves reserves reserves shareholders interests
At 01 January 2012 246,341 73,416 -22,040 -55,627 231,952 474,042 29,088
Consolidated
net income 0 0 0 0 24,302 24,302 1,726
Other comprehensive
income 0 0 2,472 -8,829 0 -6,357 -1,843
Repurchase of
own shares -1,637 -411 0 0 0 -2,048 0
Decrease 0

Distribution for 2011

At 31 December 2012

249,487

At 01 January 2011 247,509 73,578 -13,398 -38,335 211,918 481,272 31,426
Consolidated

net income 0 0 0 0 20,034 20,034 1,211
Other comprehensive

income 0 0 -8,642 -17,292 0 -25,934 -1,999
Repurchase of

own shares -1,168 -162 0 0 0 -1,330 0
Decrease 0

At 31 December 2011

058

503,130

26,028

-8,200

-2,048
-2,648
-6,767
509,496

512,698

21,245

-27,933

-1,330
-1,550

503,130
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Notes to the consolidated

financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2012

1. THE GROUP

S IMMO Group (S IMMO AG and its subsidiaries) is an interna-
tional real estate group. The ultimate parent company of the
Group, S IMMO AG, has its registered office and headquarters
at Friedrichstrasse 10, 1010 Vienna, Austria. The Company has
been listed on the Vienna Stock Exchange since 1992, since
2007 in the Prime Market Segment. It has subsidiaries in Austria,
Germany, the Czech Republic, Slovakia, Hungary, Croatia,
Romania, Bulgaria, Denmark and Cyprus. At 31 December 2012
S IMMO Group owned properties in all the above countries
except Denmark and Cyprus. The Company'’s principal business
is the acquisition, letting and sale of properties in different
regions and market segments in order to achieve a balanced
investment portfolio. Another business activity is the develop-
ment and construction of properties in cooperation with project
development partners.

2. ACCOUNTING AND VALUATION POLICIES

2.1. Accounting policies

The consolidated financial statements comply with the
International Financial Reporting Standards, including the
interpretations of the IFRS Interpretations Committee (former
“IFRIC"), the application of which was mandatory in the Euro-
pean Union at the balance sheet date.

The accounting policies of all companies included in consoli-
dation are based on the uniform accounting regulations of
S IMMO Group. The financial year for all companies is the year
ending on 31 December.

The consolidated financial statements are presented rounded
to the nearest 1,000 euro (EUR '000 or kEUR). The totals of
rounded amounts and the percentages may be affected by
rounding differences caused by the use of computer software.

2.2. Consolidation group and basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include all the companies
(subsidiaries) over which the parent company has a controlling
influence. A controlling interest exists where the parent company
is in a position directly or indirectly to determine the financial and
business policies of the subsidiary and to benefit from its
activities. A subsidiary is consolidated from the time when the
controlling influence is acquired, and deconsolidated when that
influence ceases to exist.

Companies over which the parent company directly or indirectly
exercises a significant influence are included at equity. A signifi-
cant influence is assumed to exist where S IMMO AG holds
between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.

The acquisition method is applied for initial consolidation, which
means that the identifiable assets (mainly properties) and
liabilities of the companies acquired, and the minority interests
in them, are recognised at fair value.

As a general rule, S IMMO Group recognises minority interests
as the proportionate share of identifiable net assets of the
subsidiary. Goodwill is measured as the difference between the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration given together
with the amount recognised for non-controlling interests and the
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities (net assets) of
the company acquired. The amount in excess of net assets is
recognised as goodwill. If the amount is negative, after a further
critical review of the recognition and measurement of the assets
and liabilities acquired, it is recognised in profit or loss.
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The acquisition date is the date on which control of the new
acquisition is acquired. Costs incurred by S IMMO Group in the
course of acquisition, such as fees for due diligence reviews,
valuations and other consulting services are recognised as
expenses of the period in which they are incurred.

For associated companies included at equity differences on
capital consolidation are calculated in the same way as for
consolidated companies. The proportionate share of the profit
or loss for the year is included in the carrying value of the
investment. In the event of distributions, the carrying value is
reduced by the proportionate amount.

Apart from S IMMO AG, the consolidated financial statements
include 66 (2011: 70) companies (property holding and inter-
mediary holding companies), which are fully consolidated and
directly or indirectly owned as well as controlled by S IMMO AG,
and 4 (2011: 3) companies included at equity.

In the fourth quarter, Cll Central Investments Imobiliara S.R.L.
was included in the financial statements of S IMMO AG at equity
for the first time. In the third quarter, SIAG Burstah Immobilien
GmbH was merged into S IMMO Wohnimmobilien GmbH. In
the fourth quarter, KJ EjendomneSyd APS was merged into
S IMMO AG and HWI Il ApS was merged into E.V.I. Immobilien
Beteiligungs GmbH.

Nominal Consoli-
Company Location Country capital Currency dation type
CEE Immobilien GmbH Vienna A 35,000 100 EUR full
CEE PROPERTY-INVEST Immobilien GmbH Vienna A 48,000,000 100 EUR full
CEE CZ Immobilien GmbH Vienna A 35,000 100 EUR full
German Property Invest Immobilien GmbH Vienna A 35,000 100 EUR full
Hotel DUNA Beteiligungs Gesellschaft m.b.H. Vienna A 145,346 100 EUR full
AKIM Beteiligungen GmbH Vienna A 35,000 100 EUR full
SO Immobilienbeteiligungs GmbH Vienna A 35,000 100 EUR full
CEE Beteiligungen GmbH Vienna A 35,000 100 EUR full
E.V.I. Immobilienbeteiligungs GmbH Vienna A 35,000 100 EUR full
SIAG Berlin Wohnimmobilien GmbH Vienna A 3,982,500 99.74 EUR full
E.I.A. eins Immobilieninvestitionsgesellschaft m.b.H. Vienna A 36,336 100  EUR full
PCC-Hotelerrichtungs- und Betriebsgesellschaft m.b.H
& Co. KG Vienna A 8,299,237 70 EUR full
PCC-Hotelerrichtungs- und Betriebsgesellschaft m.b.H.  Vienna A 36,336 100 EUR full
Neutorgasse 2-8 Projektverwertungs GmbH Vienna A 35,000 100 EUR full
H.S.E. Immobilienbeteiligungs GmbH Vienna A 35,000 100  EUR full
A.D.l. Immobilien Beteiligungs GmbH Vienna A 35,000 100 EUR full
ISP Immobilienentwicklungs- und Verwertungsgesell-
schaft m.b.H. Vienna A 35,000 25 EUR equity
BGM-IMMORENT Aktiengesellschaft & Co KG Vienna A 4,360,370 20.3 EUR equity
VIERTEL ZWEI Hoch GmbH & Co KG Vienna A 100,000 100  EUR full
VIERTEL ZWEI Plus GmbH & Co KG Vienna A 100,000 100 EUR full
VIERTEL ZWEI Hotel GmbH & Co KG Vienna A 100,000 100 EUR full
S IMMO Property Invest GmbH Vienna A 35,000 100 EUR full
Hansa Immobilien EOOD Sofia BG 10,175 77 BGN full
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Nominal Consoli-

Company Location Country capital Currency dation type
CEE PROPERTY BULGARIA EOOD Sofia BG 20,000 100 BGN full
Washington Project EOOD Sofia BG 20,000 50 BGN equity
SIAG HOLDING LIMITED Nicosia CY 3,000 100 EUR full
Areal CZ spol. s.r.o. Prague Cz 100,000 100 CzK full
Eltima Property Company s.r.o. Prague Cz 100,000 100 CzK full
REGA Property Invest s.r.o. Prague Cz 200,000 100 CzK full
Tolleson a.s. Prague CZ 200,000 100 CzK full
Lutzow-Center GmbH Berlin D 25,000 100 EUR full
lkaruspark GmbH Berlin D 25,000 100 EUR full
S IMMO Germany GmbH Berlin D 25,000 100 EUR full
S Immo Geschaftsimmobilien GmbH Berlin D 25,000 100 EUR full
S Immo Wohnimmobilien GmbH Berlin D 25,000 100 EUR full
Markt Carree Halle Immobilien GmbH Berlin D 25,000 100 EUR full
T6lz Immobilien GmbH Berlin D 25,000 100 EUR full
Einkaufs-Center Sofia G.m.b.H. & Co KG Hamburg D 87,000,000 65 EUR full
SIAG Deutschland Beteiligungs-Verwaltungs GmbH Berlin D 25,000 100 EUR full
SIAG Deutschland Beteiligungs GmbH & Co. KG Berlin D 100,000 99.74 EUR full
SIAG Leipzig Wohnimmobilien GmbH Berlin D 750,000 99.74 EUR full
Maior Domus Hausverwaltung GmbH Berlin D 25,000 100 EUR full
SIAG Property | GmbH Berlin D 25,000 100 EUR full
HW.I. | ApS Arhus DK 939,000 100 EUR full
HW.L IV ApS Arhus DK 134,000 100 EUR full
GERMAN PROPERTY INVESTMENT | APS (GPI | APS) Arhus DK 17,000 99.71  EUR full
GERMAN PROPERTY INVESTMENT Il APS (GPI Il APS)  Arhus DK 60,000 99.71  EUR full
GERMAN PROPERTY INVESTMENT Ill APS (GP!I Il APS)  Arhus DK 17,000 99.71  EUR full
Bank-garazs Ingatlanfejlesztési és Vagyonhasznosité Kft. Budapest H 500,000 100 HUF full
CEE Property-Invest Ingatlan Kift. Budapest H 100,000,000 100 HUF full
Maros utca Epitési és Ingatlanhasznositasi Kit. Budapest H 500,000 100 HUF full
Buda Kereskedelmi Kézpont Kift. Budapest H 3,000,000 100 HUF full
Duna Szélloda Zrt. Budapest H 5,000,000 100 HUF full
S IMMO Hungary Kift Budapest H 98,600,000 100 HUF full
Szegedi Ut Ingatlankezeld Kit. Budapest H 500,000 100 HUF full
Nagymez6 utcai Projektfejlesztesi Kft. Budapest H 462,590,000 100 HUF full
CEE Property-Invest Hungary 2003 Ingatlan Kft. Budapest H 3,000,000 100 HUF full
CEE PROPERTY INVEST ROMANIA SRL Bucharest RO 1,000 100 RON full
Societate Dezvoltare Comercial Sudului (SDCS) S.R.L. Bucharest RO 245,674,000 100 RON full
VICTORIEI BUSINESS PLAZZA S.R.L. Bucharest RO 18,852,144 100 RON full
DUAL Construct Invest S.R.L. Bucharest RO 2,000 82 RON full
ROTER INVESTITII IMOBILIARE S.R.L. Bucharest RO 4,472,020 100 RON full
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Nominal Consoli-

Company Location Country capital Currency dation type
ClI Central Investments Imobiliare S.R.L. Bucharest RO 1,816,000 47  RON equity
Galvaniho Business Centrum s.r.o. Bratislava SK 7,000 100 EUR full
Galvaniho 2 s.r.o. Bratislava SK 7,000 100 EUR full

IPD - International Property Development s.r.o. Bratislava SK 33,000 100 EUR full

SIAG Fachmarktzentren s.r.o. Bratislava SK 7,000 100 EUR full

SIAG Hotel Bratislava s.r.o. Bratislava SK 7,000 100 EUR full
Galvaniho 4 s.r.o. Bratislava SK 33,000 100 EUR full
Eurocenter d.o.o. Zagreb HR 20,000 100 HRK full

2.3. Reporting currency and currency translation

The Group’s reporting currency is the euro. The functional
currency of individual Group companies is determined by
the economic environment in which they operate. Because
circumstances have changed (the fair values, the lease
agreements and the refinancing of rental properties will, from
now on, be considered as based on the euro sustainably), the
functional currency for most Group companies in Romania,
Bulgaria, Hungary and the Czech Republic has been changed
from the local currency to the euro with effect from the start
of the fourth quarter of 2012, in accordance with IAS 21. In
accordance with the provisions of IAS 21, the change is effective
prospectively. The change affects properties with a total value
of approximately KEUR 503,000 in the consolidated financial

statements for the year ended 31 December 2012. In our judge-
ment the new approach results in a better presentation of
S IMMO Group'’s financial position and financial performance.

For those Group companies for which the local currency remains
the functional currency, functional currencies are translated into
the reporting currency in accordance with IAS 21, as follows:

(@) Assets and liabilities at closing rate

(b) Income and expenses at the average rate for the period

(c) All resulting exchange differences are recognised in the
foreign currency translation reserve under equity.

Foreign currencies have been translated using the following
exchange rates:

Czech Republic Hungary Bulgaria Romania Croatia

CzK HUF BGN 2{0]\ HRK

Closing rate 31 December 2012 25151 292.300 1.956 4.445 7.558
Average rate 2012 25.219 285.546 1.956 4.494 7.533
Closing rate 31 December 2011 25.787 314.580 1.956 4.323 7.537
Average rate 2011 24.635 280.460 1.956 4.242 7.444
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2.4. Newly applicable accounting regulations

2.4.1. New Standards and Interpretations

B Amendments to IFRS 1, First-time Adoption — Severe Hyper-
inflation and Removal of Fixed Dates for First-time Adopters

B Amendments to IFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures
— Transfers of Financial Assets

B Amendments to IAS 12, Income Taxes — Deferred Tax:
Recovery of Underlying Assets

Effects of new or amended Standards on S IMMO Group:

The new or amended Standards applicable as of 01 January
2012 required no material changes to the consolidated financial
statements. The accounting and valuation policies as well as
calculation and presentation methods were not significantly
different from those applied in the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2011.

2.4.2 New Standards not yet mandatorily applicable
at balance sheet date

For financial years beginning on or after 01 July 2012.

Endorsed for use in the EU and published in the Official Journal
of the EU:

B Changes in IAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements —
Disclosure of ltems Presented in Other Comprehensive Income

For financial years beginning on or after 01 January 2013.

Endorsed for use in the EU and published in the Official Journal
of the EU:

B Changes in IFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures — Off-
setting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

B [|FRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements, and IAS 27,
Separate Financial Statements (effective date per EU Commis-
sion: 01 January 2014)

B IFRS 11, Joint Arrangements, and IAS 28, Investments in As-
sociates and Joint Ventures (effective date per EU Commission:
01 January 2014)
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B |IFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities (effective
date per EU Commission: 01 January 2014)

B |FRS 13, Fair Value Measurement

B |AS 19, Employee Benefits

B IFRIC 20, Stripping Costs in Surface Mining

Not yet endorsed for use in the EU:

B Amendments to IFRS 1, First-time Adoption — Government
Loans

B Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12, Transition
Guidance

B Improvements to IFRS 1, IAS 1, IAS 16, IAS 32 and IAS 34
(as part of the IASB’s annual improvements process)

For financial years beginning on or after 01 January 2014.

Endorsed for use in the EU and published in the Official Journal
of the EU:

B Amendments to IAS 32, Financial Instruments: Disclosures —
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Not yet endorsed for use in the EU:
B Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IFRS 27, Investment
Entities

For financial years beginning on or after 01 January 2015.

Not yet endorsed for use in the EU:

B IFRS 9, Financial Instruments

B Amendments to IFRS 9, Financial Instruments and IFRS 7,
Financial Instruments: Disclosures — Mandatory Effective Date
and Transition Disclosures

There is no voluntary early application of the above revisions and
interpretations. Management is currently analysing the possible
consequences of the revised Standards and Interpretations in
the applicable years of initial application.
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2,5. Changes in accounting and valuation policies
Apart from the change in the functional currency in some
countries in the CEE and SEE regions described in chapter 2.3.
there were no changes in the financial year 2012 in accounting
and valuation policies or in the presentation of the financial
statements. The adjustment of the functional currency as at
01 October 2012 has led to a non significant shift in terms of the
currency differences between the income statement and the
statement of comprehensive income.

2.6.  Accounting and valuation policies

2.6.1. Properties held as financial investments

It is industry practise to measure properties held as financial
investments using the fair value model, under the option available
in IAS 40. Properties held as financial investments are properties
leased or rented out for the purpose of generating income or
held for capital appreciation, together with undeveloped land.
Properties acquired or being developed for disposal and
properties used by the Group are not within the scope of
IAS 40.

The application of the fair value model means that investment
properties and undeveloped land are measured at fair value at
the balance sheet date. The resulting changes in carrying values
before revaluation are recognised as a profit or loss under
revaluations.

Properties are recognised as assets of the company in question,
in the relevant functional currency.

The diversity of the properties to which the fair value model is
applied necessitates a careful choice of appropriate valuation
models and different parameters for each individual property, so
that factors such as location, use type, market environment,
building quality, etc., are taken into account. The valuations
generally use the earnings value method or the discounted cash
flow method.
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2.6.2. Owner-operated properties, other plant and
equipment

Owner-operated properties consist mainly of hotels operated by
S IMMO Group. The business of these hotels includes the rental
of rooms and catering activities. These hotels are for the most
part operated under management agreements, and conse-
quently the risks associated with occupancy rates are in part
borne by S IMMO Group. Hotels of this kind are outside the
scope of IAS 40 (properties held as financial investments) and
are therefore to be treated as tangible non-current assets
under IAS 16.

Under IAS 16, owner-operated properties (including owner-
managed hotels) and other non-current tangible assets are
valued using the cost model. The properties are recognised on
initial capitalisation at costs of acquisition or construction and in
subsequent years written down to reflect scheduled deprecia-
tion and any impairment losses.

Where construction finance can be directly associated with
these properties, the borrowing costs of qualifying properties
during the period of construction are capitalised as part of
acquisition and construction cost.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the
expected useful lives of the assets, as follows:

Expected useful lives (years)

from to

25 33

Other plant and equipment 3 10

Owner-operated hotels

2.6.3. Goodwill

The goodwill disclosed in the balance sheet is the result of
applying the acquisition method in accounting for the acquisition
of companies. In accordance with IAS 36, the value of goodwiill
is based on the value of the company at the time of acquisition
less accumulated amortisation. For interests in associated
companies, goodwill is included in the carrying amounts of the
investments.



2.6.4. Intangible assets

Intangible assets for the purpose of IAS 38 are identifiable non-
monetary assets without physical substance. To qualify for
recognition, an intangible asset must be identifiable and be
under the control of the entity. It must be probable that future
economic benefits from the assets will flow to the entity and its
cost must be capable of being measured reliably.

Intangible assets with a limited useful life are subject to
scheduled amortisation, calculated on the basis of the following
useful lives:

Expected useful lives (years)

from to

Software 3 6

As required under IAS 36, the carrying values are also reviewed
for impairment.

Intangible assets acquired for consideration are recognised at
acquisition cost less scheduled straight-line amortisation and
provision for any impairment losses.

S IMMO Group has not capitalised any internally generated
intangible assets.

2.6.5. Properties held for disposal

Property held for disposal is not considered to be investment
property within the scope of IAS 40 if it is Management'’s intention
to dispose of the property in the near future and the negotiations
for sale are already well-advanced.

In accordance with IFRS 5, property held for sale is as a general
rule measured at the lower of carrying value and net realisable
value.

IFRS 5 provides for an exception with respect to the measure-
ment of properties held as financial investments: they are
measured at market value. The special disclosure requirements
under IFRS 5 are however applicable, so that properties held for
sale must be shown under current assets.
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It is intended to dispose of one property held in Austria and two
in Germany. The carrying value of these at 31 December 2012
amounted to KEUR 62,700.

2.6.6. Financial instruments

2.6.6.1. Primary financial instruments
In accordance with IAS 39, S IMMO Group as a general rule
classifies its financial instruments as follows:

B Financial assets and liabilities measurable at fair value
through profit and loss

Loans and receivables

Financial assets held to maturity

Available-for-sale financial assets

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Classification is based on the purpose for which the individual
instrument is acquired and takes place at the time of
acquisition.

S IMMO Group as a general rule classifies financial instruments
into the following categories:

Interests in associated companies
Group interests

Trade receivables

Other accounts receivable

Cash and cash equivalents
Subordinated participating certificate capital
Non-current financial liabilities
Other non-current liabilities
Current financial liabilities

Trade payables

Other current liabilities

The category financial instruments and liabilities measurable at
fair value through profit and loss includes financial instruments
held for trading purposes, financial instruments classified as
such at the time of acquisition and all derivative financial instru-
ments except those serving as hedges.
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The assets classified under loans and receivables are financial
instruments with fixed or determinable payment flows not traded
in an active market. They include in particular trade receivables
and other financial assets. Where their remaining maturities are
less than 12 months they are disclosed under current assets,
and otherwise under non-current assets.

Financial assets with fixed or determinable payment flows traded
in an active market are disclosed under financial assets held to
maturity. At the balance sheet date, S IMMO Group held no such
instruments.

Available-for-sale financial assets comprise all financial assets
not included in any other of the above categories or deliberately
classified as available-for-sale. These financial instruments are
disclosed as non-current assets unless it is Management's
intention to dispose of them within the next 12 months.

The category financial liabilities at amortised cost comprises
trade and other financial liabilities.

Additions to and disposals of financial instruments are
recognised as of the applicable settlement dates. Financial
assets in all categories are measured at fair value at the time
of acquisition and — with the exception of those recognised at fair
value through profit and loss — including transaction costs.

Where no fair value for financial instruments can reliably be
established, they are disclosed at acquisition costs net of any
impairment. Other liabilities-side financial instruments are
measured at amortised cost.

The fair value of stock market listed financial instruments is their
market price at the balance sheet date. For financial assets for
which there is no active market the fair value is calculated with
the aid of valuation models. This can involve the derivation of fair
value from current transactions in similar financial instruments or
from present values of future payment streams (discounted cash
flow models), or the use of mathematical models.
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2.6.6.2. Derivatives

S IMMO Group uses derivative financial instruments — interest
rate caps, collars and swaps — to reduce the risks attendant on
interest rate increases. These are measured at fair value. The fair
value measurement of derivatives is based on estimates made
by banks.

S IMMO Group’s objects include the acquisition and develop-
ment of property for rental or subsequent sale with the aim of
generating positive net cash flows. Business activities are
financed out of equity, and also by long-term borrowings in the
form of mortgage loans and other financial liabilities. The bulk of
the external financing consists of variable rate borrowings, with
interest rates linked to 3-month, 6-month or 12-month Euribor as
base rate.

S IMMO Group’s fundamental risk management strategy is to
hedge interest rate risk (i.e., the variability of the base rate) using
offsetting hedges, in order to ensure fixed payment streams and
to make property project forecasts more reliable. The purpose of
cash flow hedging at S IMMO Group is to reduce the risk on
existing variable rate loans, future reinvested funds and trans-
actions expected to be very probable in the future (forecast
transactions) by using offsetting derivatives. Cash flow hedging
arrangements are used for this purpose.

Hedged risk

The interest rate risk hedged is a market interest rate, the Euribor,
which is an identifiable component of the interest rate risk on
interest-bearing financial liabilities that can be separately
assessed.



Hedging instruments

S IMMO Group uses as hedging instruments only derivatives
that, because they move in the opposite direction to the under-
lying transactions, convert the potential changes in cash flows,
in particular from increases in interest rates into fixed payments
streams. The hedging instruments used are interest rate deriva-
tives such as interest rate swaps, caps and collars. The effective
part of the change in fair value of these derivatives is recognised
not through profit and loss but under other comprehensive
income, the ineffective portion is recognised through profit
and loss as part of the financing results. For the non-linear
interest rate options used as hedges, only the intrinsic value is
designated as a hedge. The time value, as ineffective, is recog-
nised in the income statement as part of financing costs. For the
collars, care is taken to ensure that there is no net short
position.

The changes in the valuation of cash flow hedges recognised
under equity are transferred to the income statement in the
period in which the hedged underlying transaction affects profit
and loss or when the requirements for recognition as a cash flow
hedge are no longer met. In the financial year 2012, according
to the regulations of IAS 39 derivative valuation effects
of KEUR 6,019 from the equity was reclassified in the income
statement.

So that the requirements for recognition as a cash flow hedge
are met, at the time of the derivative transaction S IMMO Group
documents the hedging relationship between the hedging
instrument and the underlying transaction and the underlying
hedging strategy. The effectiveness of the hedge is regularly
assessed using both a priori and a posteriori tests.
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2.6.7. Impairment of assets

2.6.7.1.Non-financial assets

For properties used by the owner (at present these are mostly
hotels) and for other tangible assets and intangible assets,
where there is evidence of impairment the recoverable amount
is ascertained, in accordance with IAS 36. The recoverable
amount is the higher of the fair value less costs to sell (net
realisable value) and the value in use.

The fair value is the amount that would be obtained by the
sale of the asset in an arm’s length transaction between
knowledgeable, willing and independent parties.

The value in use is the present value of the estimated future
payment flows that can be expected from the continued use of
an asset and its disposal at the end of its useful life.

If the recoverable amount is less than the carrying value of the
asset, there is an impairment writedown to the recoverable
amount through profit and loss.

In principle the recoverable amount should be calculated for
each individual asset for which the value is to be measured.
However, since payment flows cannot always be attributed to
each asset directly, for the purpose of impairment tests assets
are grouped into cash generating units (CGUs). The Group's
hotels are treated as individual CGUs.

The impairment test for hotels is a two-stage process. The carry-
ing value is first compared with the independent assessment of
the hotel’s fair value. If the carrying value exceeds the fair value,
the question is then whether the value in use differs substantially
from the fair value. If this is not the case, then the carrying value
is written down to correspond to the fair value.

If the impairment subsequently disappears, the impairment
loss is reversed through profit and loss, up to the lower of the
new recoverable amount or the depreciated original cost of
acquisition or construction. The Group had no such reversals
of impairment losses in 2012 or the previous year.
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Goodwill carried in the balance sheet is subjected to an
impairment test on a yearly basis, in accordance with IAS 36.

2.6.7.2.Financial instruments

S IMMO Group reviews all its financial assets, with the exception
of those measured at fair value through profit and loss, at every
balance sheet date for any objective indications that any asset
or group of assets may have suffered impairment.

For debt instruments of all kinds except those measured at fair
value through profit and loss, an impairment is recognised if as
a result of one or more events taking place after the initial
recognition of the asset there is objective evidence that S IMMO
Group will no longer be in a position to collect the payments
relating to the asset. The amount of the impairment is calculated
as the difference between the carrying value of the financial
asset and the present value of the future cash flows, calculated
using the original rate of interest on the asset. A subsequent
disappearance of the factors causing the impairment and a
recovery in value entails a reversal of the impairment loss.

Trade receivables

Where there are objective indications that individual receivables
can not be recovered in full, provisions are raised for the amounts
expected to be irrecoverable. S IMMO Group makes general
provisions for doubtful individual debts on the basis of
experience, generally applying the following principles:

B Receivables overdue by more than 3 months: 50%
provision
B Receivables overdue by more than 1 year: 100% provision

The outstanding balances are constantly monitored by the

responsible asset managers, so that appropriate measures can
be taken in good time.
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2.6.8. Other assets
Other assets are measured at cost less any impairment losses,
which are recognised through profit and loss.

2.6.9. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and sight deposits
together with bank deposits with a maturity of up to three months
at the time of the original deposit.

2.6.10. Other provisions

Other provisions are made where S IMMO Group has legal or
constructive obligations to other parties arising from past events,
where it is probable that the obligation will lead to an outflow of
resources and where the amount of the obligation can be
estimated reliably.

Provisions are made in the amounts representing the best
possible estimates of the expense of meeting the obligations.
Where the present value of the provision calculated using a
market rate of interest differs materially from the nominal value,
the present value is recognised.

Appropriate provisions have been made for unresolved legal
disputes and other legal proceedings.

A provision is made for onerous contracts (provision for project
and transaction risks) when the expected revenues from a
contract are exceeded by the unavoidable costs of meeting the
obligations under the contract. The amount of the provision is
the lower of the cost of withdrawing from the contract and the net
cost of completing it. Before separate provision for an onerous
contract is made, impairments on assets connected with the
contract are recognised.



2.6.11. Taxes
Tax provisions include both current taxes payable by the
individual companies and deferred taxes.

In accordance with IAS 12, deferred taxes are recognised on all
temporary differences between the carrying value of an asset or
liability in the consolidated financial statements and the carrying
value for tax purposes in the individual accounts of the Group’s
subsidiaries. Where it can with reasonable certainty be expected
that a property can be disposed of without giving rise to a tax
liability, no deferred tax is provided. Additionally, tax credits from
tax loss carryforwards that are expected to be realisable are
recognised as deferred tax assets.

Deferred taxes are calculated using the applicable tax rates at
the balance sheet date, or where changes in tax law have already
been adopted, at the rates applicable in future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised in connection with tax loss
carryforwards only where in the Management’s estimation it is
probable that the losses will be able to be offset against future
taxable profits of the relevant company.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities within an indi-
vidual company are only netted off where the company in
question has a legally enforceable right to set tax assets and
liabilities against each other, and where the deferred taxes relate
to taxes on income assessable by the same tax authority on the
same company.

2.6.12. Revenues

2.6.12.1. Rental income

Rental income is recognised evenly over the term of the rental

agreement. One-time payments and waivers of rent are spread
over the lifetime of rental agreements.
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2.6.12.2. Revenues from hotel operations

Revenues from hotel operations consist largely of room rental
income and catering income. Income is recognised in propor-
tion to the services rendered at balance sheet date.

2.6.12.3. Income and costs from financial instruments
Income from financial investments includes interest, dividends
and capital gains from the investment of funds and from invest-
ments in financial assets, together with reversals of impairment
losses. Dividends are recognised at the time the resolutions
authorising the dividend distribution are passed.

Financial expenses include interest and similar expenses on
external borrowings, incidental costs, losses on disposal of
financial assets, impairment losses, current hedging results and
exchange rate gains and losses on the translation of euro
denominated property values from euro into the local currency
(if the local currency differs from the euro) and on the valuation
of monetary assets and liabilities at individual company level.

Interest is accrued using the effective interest rate method.

The valuation of derivatives reflects gains and losses on the
disposal or revaluation of interest caps, collars and swaps,
which have not been recognised in equity.

Where applicable, short-term exchange gains or losses on the
valuation of financial instruments are disclosed here.

2.6.12.4. Estimation and assumption uncertainties

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in accord-
ance with IFRS requires estimates and assumptions by
Management about future developments. These can have a
material influence on the recognition and measurement of
assets and liabilities, on information about other obligations at
the balance sheet date and on disclosure of income and
expenses during the financial year.
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In the case of the following assumptions there is a not incon-
siderable risk that they may result in a material adjustment of
assets and liabilities in the next financial year.

B The calculation of the fair value of properties held as
financial investments has been based on expert valuations
by internationally recognised valuers such as CBRE,
PriceWaterhouseCoopers, DTZ, Colliers International, EHL and
Dr. Heinz Muhr. The valuations have been prepared in com-
pliance with International Valuation Standards. The values of
these properties depend to a significant extent on present
estimates of future rental trends and vacancy levels, and on
interest rates used for discounting purposes. The valuations
apply the earnings value method, on the basis of expected
sustainable future rental yields and market interest rates (Austria:
3.0%—-7.0%; elsewhere: 4.8%—-11.0%). Properties held as
financial assets had a carrying value of kEUR 1,681,383
(31.12.2011:kEUR 1,772,379).

B Estimates of the long-term value of tangible and intangible
assets are based on assumptions about the future. The calcula-
tion of recoverable amounts for the purpose of impairment tests
is based on several assumptions, for example, about future net
cash flows and discount rates. The carrying value of intangible
assets amounted to kEUR 165 (31.12.2011: KEUR 165), that
of other non-current assets to kEUR 7,034 (31.12.2011:
KEUR 7,472). Owner-operated properties had a carrying value
of KEUR 128,202 (31.12.2011: kEUR 134,321).

B In estimating the value of financial instruments (in particular,
derivatives) for which no active market exists, alternative
valuation methods based on investment mathematics are
employed. The parameters on which estimates of fair value are
based depend in part on assumptions about the future. The
carrying values of financial instruments are detailed in note 5.1.
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B The recognition of deferred tax assets for tax loss
carryforwards is based on the assumption that taxable income
earned in the future will be sufficient to enable existing loss
carryforwards to be utilised. Deferred tax assets for tax loss
carryforwards of kEUR 22,690 (31.12.2011: kEUR 21,425) have
been recognised.

B Obligations arising from sureties, guarantees and similar
liabilities not included in the consolidated statement of financial
position are regularly reviewed to ensure that they do not require
to be so recognised and included.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are subject to ongoing
review. Actual outcomes may differ from the assumptions and
estimates made if developments in the business environment
turn out differently to expectations. Changes are reflected in
profit or loss as soon as the altered circumstances become
known, and the assumptions are adjusted accordingly.



3. NOTES ON THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
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AND CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

3.1.  Statement of financial position
3.1.1. Properties held as financial investments
Development projects and
EUR '000 Investment properties undeveloped land
As at 01 January 2011 1,810,322 55,989
Additions (including initial consolidations) 12,053 1,991
Disposals -25,316 0
Changes in fair value -17,360 -2,500
Reclassifications -62,800 0

whereof pledged as security 1,684,951 0
Additions 6,544 1,977
Disposals -55,957 0
Changes in fair value 23,940 -4,800
Reclassifications -30,200 -32,500

As at 31 December 2012

whereof pledged as security

1,661,226
1,686,424

20,157

0

Additions by country were as follows:

RARDLCTnlolsT@ll 31 December
2012 2011

Investment properties

Development projects and undeveloped land

KRBT InlolT@ll 31 December
2012

EUR 000 EUR 000 2011
Austria 324 Austria 0
Germany 9,827 Germany 0
Central Europe 1,766 Central Europe 147
Southeastern Europe 136 Southeastern Europe 1,844

12,053 1,991
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Made up of:

Investment properties

31 December
EUR '000 2012

Austria 529,391

31 December

Development projects and undeveloped land

CRMPCToTlolsI@l 31 December
EUR '000 2012 2011

Germany 473,482

Central Europe 302,438

Southeastern Europe 355,915

1,661,226

2011
568,390 Austria (0] 0
513,385 Germany (0] 0
305,855 Central Europe 5,639 6,322
329,269 Southeastern Europe 14,518 49,158
1,716,899 20,157 55,480

In the financial year 2012, borrowing costs totalling KEUR 531
(2011: kEUR 395) were capitalised. These amounts related to
properties still under construction and to properties completed
during 2012 for the period prior to their completion.

3.1.2. Owner-operated properties, other plant and equipment and intangible assets
Changes in the acquisition costs of owner-operated hotels, other plant and equipment and intangible assets were as follows:

EUR '000

Acquisition costs as at 01 January 2011

Owner- Other plant  Intangible
operated hotels and equipment assets Total

171,987 14,662 486 187,135

Additions

524 645 57 1,226

Disposals

0 0 -5 -5

As at 31 December 2011

Additions

172,511 15,307 188,356

2,213

Disposals

-5

As at 31 December 2012
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172,892 190,564



The development in the accumulated depreciation and amorti-
sation of owner-operated hotels, other plant and equipment and
intangible assets was as follows:

EUR '000

Accumulated depreciation and amortisation

S MmO

Owner-
operated hotels

Other plant
and equipment

Intangible
assets

as at 01 January 2011 31,232 5,593 307 KYAKY
Depreciation and amortisation 6,958 2,242 66 9,266
Disposals 0 0 0 (0]

As at 31 December 2011

38,190 46,398

Depreciation and amortisation

8,765

Disposals

0

As at 31 December 2012

55,163

Carrying value as at 01 January 2011 140,755 9,069 179 150,003
Carrying value as at 31 December 2011 134,321 7,472 165 141,958
Carrying value as at 31 December 2012 128,202 7,034 165 135,401

In the financial year 2012, no impairment losses on owner-
occupied properties were necessary.

3.1.3. Goodwill
Changes in goodwill were as follows:

EUR '000

Goodwill

As at 01 January 2011

Additions — initial consolidation

Impairment losses
As at 31 December 2011

Additions/disposals

Impairment losses

As at 31 December 2012

The goodwill arose on initial consolidation in the financial 2010
of VIERTEL ZWEI Hotel GmbH & Co KG, which forms part of the
Austrian business segment.
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3.1.4. Properties held for sale 3.1.5. Inventories
Inventories consist mainly of freehold apartments under
EUR '000 Austria ~ Germany construction in Austria and are measured at cost.
As at ;
3.1.6. Trade receivables and other accounts
01 January 2011 (0] 6,000 6,000 .
e receivable
Reclassifications 18 2e SO Y Trade receivables include rents receivable from tenants less any
Disposals 0 -6,000 -6,000 specific provisions required. These consist mainly of provisions
As at against receivables in Southeastern Europe of KEUR 11,516
31 December 2011 16,250 46,550 62,800 (2011: KEUR 10,750) and in Germany of kEUR 1,899 (2011:
KEUR 2,705).
Reclassifications 33,000 29,700 62,700
Disposals -16,250 -46,550 -62,800
As at
31 December 2012 33,000 29,700 62,700

The amount of kEUR 62,700 relates to one retail property in
Bremen, one residential property in Berlin and one residential
property in Vienna.

3.1.6.1.Receivables — due dates

2012 2011

Other Other

Trade accounts Trade accounts

EUR '000 receivables receivable receivables receivable
Not yet due 4,869 11,268
Less than 3 months overdue 3,757 1,323
3 to 12 months overdue 1,045 2,186
More than 1 year overdue 272 1,210
Total 9,943 15,987
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3.1.6.2. Other accounts receivable

RARDLCTInnlolT@ll 31 December
2012 2011

5
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Details of share capital

31 December

31 December

EUR '000 EUR '000 2012 2011
Current tax credits 4,629 Total share capital 246,341 247,509
Property management Treasury shares (nominal) -1,637 -1,168
agents clearing accounts 1,484 244,705 246,341
Present value of
rental guarantee 923
Loan subsidies outstanding 233 Changes in share capital
Accrued interest and interest
rate caps and collars 259 KRBT lolT@ 31 December
Receivables from Number of shares 2012 2011
property disposals 2,583
Other assets 5.876 Authorised share capital
as at 01 January 67,797,168 68,118,718
1 7
5,98 Repurchase of own shares -450,441 -321,550
Issue of new shares (0] 0
3.1.7. Cash and cash equivalents Treasury shares sold 0 0
Issued share capital
31 December at 31 December 67,346,727 67,797,168

EUR '000 2011
Bank balances 115,033
Cash in hand 227

115,260

3.1.8. Shareholders’ equity

The nominal capital of the Group’s parent company was
unchanged from the previous year and amounted to kEUR
247,509. The share capital is fully paid up.

On 31 May 2012, the share repurchase programme set into
effect in October 2011 ended. In June 2012, an additional share
repurchase programme was approved, which will expire on
27 June 2013 at the latest. In the financial year 2011, 321,550
shares were repurchased at a total price of KEUR 1,330 and in
the financial year 2012, this amounted to 450,441 shares at a
total price of kKEUR 2,048.

The Management Board is authorised to increase the share
capital of the Company by up to KEUR 123,755 by issuing new
ordinary bearer shares (conditional capital). The issue may be
for cash or for contributions in kind.

The shares are listed in the Prime Market Segment of the Vienna
Stock Exchange.

The nominal share capital is divided into 68,118,718 ordinary
fully paid up bearer shares of no par value.

The bearer shares confer on the shareholders the usual rights
provided for under the Austrian Stock Corporation Act (AktG).
These include the right of a dividend payment approved by the
Annual General Meeting and the right to vote at the Annual
General Meeting.

The capital reserves of kEUR 73,005 (31.12.2011: KEUR 73,416)

are restricted reserves in the meaning of section 229(5) Austrian
Commercial Code (UGB).
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The other reserves of KEUR 249,487 (31.12.2011: kEUR 231,952)
shown in the statement of changes in consolidated equity
consist in the main of released capital reserves together with
accumulated retained results. The foreign currency reserve of
KEUR -19,568 (31.12.2011: kEUR -22,040) is made up of the
currency translation differences in accordance with IAS 21. The
hedge accounting reserve of kEUR -64,456 (31.12.2011:
KEUR -55,627) comprises the valuation differences on cash
flow hedges recognised under equity.

Additional information on capital management

S IMMO Group manages its capital with the aim of maximising
its returns by optimising the relationship between equity and
debt. At the same time, care is taken to ensure that all Group
companies can operate on a going concern basis.

The Group’s capital consists of bank and financial liabilities,
equity provided by the shareholders in the parent company
and subordinated participating certificates, described in more
detail in note 3.1.10. There are no provisions in the articles of
incorporation concerning capital structure.

The shareholders’ equity consists of the shares in issue, capital
and other reserves and the consolidated net profit, as shown in
the statement of Changes in Consolidated Equity.

The capital structure is under constant review, and the costs of
capital and the risks attaching to each type of capital are taken
into account. The Group will continue to optimise the capital
structure, by issuing and repaying debt and as appropriate
issuing and repurchasing shares.

The Group’s overall strategy is essentially the same as in 2011.
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3.1.9. Non-controlling interests

The minority interests of KEUR 26,323 (31.12.2011: KEUR 29,088)
relate principally to Einkaufscenter Sofia G.m.b.H. & Co KG
(35% interest).

3.1.10. Subordinated participating certificates

The terms of the agreement for S IMMO INVEST participating
certificates were changed retroactively with effect from 01 Janu-
ary 2007 and the S IMMO INVEST Participating Certificates Fund
was dissolved (resolution of the meeting of the holders of the
participating certificates of 11 June 2007 and resolution of the
Annual General Meeting of 12 June 2007).

Under the amended agreement, the holders of the participating
certificates receive an annual income entitlement (interest)
calculated as follows:

Consolidated EBIT

Average property portfolio
(not including development
projects)

(Participating certificate
capital + profit brought
forward)

To the extent that the interest under the terms of the Participating
Certificates Agreement is not paid out, it is added to the profit
carried forward into the next year.

For the financial year 2012 the total share of earnings was
kEUR 12,018 (2011: kEUR 10,595).

As at 31 December 2012 there were 2,773,962 participating
certificates in issue. The total entitlements of participating certifi-
cate holders as of that date were EUR 80.20 (2011: EUR 79.44)
per certificate, made up as follows:



Participating
certificate  Profit brought
EUR '000 capital forward

Participating certificates capital —
01 January 2012 211,137

Profit for the
period

S MmO

Share of
undisclosed
reserves on
property
portfolio

212,857

Profit brought forward 01 January 2012

7,345

Income entitlements of participating certificate
holders from 2011

10,595

Distribution — 18 May 2012

-11,186

Change in profit brought forward pursuant to
Clause 5(6), Participating Certificates Agreement

Repurchase and retirement of 131,464
participating certificates

-9,937

Income entitlements of participating certificate
holders

12,018

Allocation of undisclosed reserves on
property portfolio

Participating certificates capital
as at 31 December 2012 201,584

Per participating certificate (EUR) 72.67

Previous year:

Participating
certificate  Profit brought
EUR '000 capital forward

Participating certificate capital -
01 January 2011 234,352

Profit for the
period

791

222,483

80.20

Share of
undisclosed
reserves on
property
portfolio

1,254

Profit brought forward 01 January 2011

Income entitlements of participating certificate
holders from 2010

Distribution — 28 April 2011

Change in profit brought forward pursuant to
Clause 5(6), Participating Certificates Agreement

Repurchase and retirement of 319,458
participating certificates

-24,339

Income entitlements of participating certificate
holders

10,595

Allocation of undisclosed reserves on
property portfolio

Participating certificates capital
as at 31 December 2011 211,137

Per participating certificate (EUR) 72.67

10,595

3.65

590

230,797

79.44
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The participating certificates mature on 31 December 2029. With effect from 31 December 2017, both the holders and the Company
may annually give notice of redemption of the participating certificates in whole or in part.

3.1.11. Provisions
01 January 31 December
EUR '000 2012 Released Utilised Increased 2012
Project and transaction risks 5,200 -2,200 0 1,500
Taxes on income 274 -45 -34 2,546
Other provisions 2,418 0 -740 934

The provision for project and transaction risks relates to risks in respect of projects currently being carried out.

Other provisions consisted mainly of personnel provisions and provisions for management fees.

3.1.12. Taxes on income

3.1.12.1  Current and deferred taxes on income
Tax expense was made up as follows:

Current taxes -1,546
Deferred taxes -6,852
-8,398

Taxes on income comprise income tax on the taxable income
of the individual companies included in consolidation for the
financial year, adjustments to prior years’ tax, and changes in
deferred taxes.
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The reconciliation of income tax at the standard rate to the
income tax disclosed in the financial statements is as follows:

(R Pyl 01-12/2011

EUR '000

Profit before taxes 32,198 29,643
Income tax expense at the

standard Austrian tax rate

of 25% -7,411
Effects of differing foreign

tax rates 268
Reductions in tax relating to

tax neutral income 9,296
Increases in tax relating to

non-deductible expenses -10,550
Tax expense as disclosed -8,398



3.1.12.2. Deferred taxes

In accordance with IAS 12, the provision for deferred taxation
is calculated using the balance sheet liability method: For
all temporary differences between the values for balance
sheet purposes in the IFRS consolidated statement of financial
position and the current values for tax purposes for the indi-
vidual companies, deferred tax must be provided. Temporary
differences can be either:

B taxable temporary differences, which will result in taxable
amounts in the calculation of taxable income or tax loss in future
periods, when the carrying value of the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, or

B deductible temporary differences, which will result in tax
deductible amounts in the calculation of taxable income or tax
loss in future, when the carrying value of the asset is realised or
the liability is settled.

EUR '000

Properties held as financial investments

5
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As a general principle, a deferred tax asset or liability must be
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. There are
exceptions for the recognition of goodwill in an initial consolida-
tion or the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a business
transaction which is not a business combination and which at
the time of the transaction, does not affect the profit or loss
either under IFRS or for tax purposes.

Temporary differences between values in the IFRS consolidated
statement of financial position and the corresponding values for
tax purposes had the following effects on deferred taxes as
shown in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Financial instruments

Other items

Tax loss carryforwards

Netting

Deferred tax assets (+) / liabilities (-)

No deferred tax assets have been recognised for tax loss
carryforwards totalling kEUR 130,113.

2011
Liabilities Assets Liabilities
1,710 1,326 -69,478
21,737 17,792 -40
1,037 974 -1,067
22,690 21,425 0
47174 41,517 -70,585
-7,985 7,985
33,532 -62,600
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3.1.12.3. Measurement 3.2. Income statement
Deferred taxes are calculated on the basis of the tax rates in

force or expected to apply in the relevant countries at the time ~ 3.2.1.  Revenues

of realisation. Changes in tax legislation in force or approved at

the balance sheet date are taken into account. The tax rates EUR "000 _ 2011

used in calculating deferred taxes were as follows:
Rental income —

Tax rate for ~ Tax rate for office property 43,691
2012 2013 Rental income —
residential property 28,022
Austria 25.00% 25.00% Rental income —
Germany 29.40%' 29.40%' retail property 44,937
Czech Republic 19.00% 19.00% Rental income — hotels 9,293
Slovakia 19.00% 23.00% 125,943
Hungary 19.00%2 19.00%2
Croatia 20.00% 20.00%
Romania 16.00% 16.00% 3.2.2. Operating costs .and expenses from properties
and hotel operations
Bulgaria 10.00% 10.00%

These costs and expenses are expenses in connection with

' The tax rate in Germany can vary, depending on whether the company non-current property assets.
is liable to business tax or not. An average tax rate has therefore been

used. EUR '000 _ 2011

The tax rate in Hungary is progressive: Up to a taxable amount of

N

HUF 500,000,000, the tax rate is 10%, thereafter 19%. Expenses directly
attributable to properties
Operating costs -42,643 -45,988
Deferred taxes are only recognised for the property subsidiaries Repairs and maintenance -11,696 14,071

to the extent that a tax burden is expected to arise on the rental Provisions on trade
receivables -4,097 -8,051

Commissions -3,738 -3,808
Other -4,863 -5,064

or sale of the properties involved.

-67,037 -76,982

Expenses of KEUR 156 were attributable to properties not yet
generating income (2011: kEUR 729).

The expenses of hotel operations are largely made up of
expenses for food, beverages, catering supplies, hotel rooms,
licences and management fees, maintenance, operating costs,
commissions, personnel expenses and advertising.
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3.2.3. Gains on property disposals

EUR '000

2012 2011

5
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3.2.4. Management expenses
Management expenses are expenses not directly attributable to
properties; they were made up as follows:

Disposal proceeds EUR '000 2012 2011
Properties held as
financial investments 62,483 32,486 Personnel expenses -6,581
Properties held for sale 64,562 6,300 Legal, audit, valuation and
Inventories 5,185 7,714 consultancy costs -4,077
132,230 46,500 Manggeme‘nt fees and
administration expenses -1,582
Carrying ;l?lue Ofl Advertising and promotional
property disposals expenses -1,205
F.’rope.me.s neldas Other taxes and charges -932
financial investments -55,957 -25,316
) Other -2,792
Properties held for sale -62,800 -6,000
: -17,169
Inventories -2,633 -3,600
-121,390 -34,916
Gains on Fees invoiced by the Group’s auditors in 2012 totalled KEUR 239
property disposals (2011: kEUR 219). Of this, kKEUR 163 (2011: kKEUR 160) was the
Properties held as financial cost of the annual audit and kEUR 76 (2011: KEUR 59) was for
investments 7170 tax consulting services.
Properties held for sale 300
Inventories 4114 The average number of employees in 2012 was 521 (2011: 532),
. including hotel staff. Personnel expenses for the hotels are

disclosed under hotel operations.

The personnel expenses disclosed here are salaries of the
Group’s employees other than the hotel staff. The amount
also includes performance related bonuses paid to certain
employees under individual agreements.

081



ANNUAL REPORT 2012 | CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Defined contribution plans

As required by law, S IMMO Group pays 1.53% of the relevant
monthly salaries into an employees’ severance pay and
pensions fund for all employees who joined the Group after
31 December 2002. Personnel expenses in 2012 included
contributions of KEUR 47 (2011: kEUR 40) paid into the fund.

They also included kEUR 242 (2011: kEUR 131) expenses for
pensions.

Defined benefit plans following termination of employment

For persons employed before 01 January 2003, S IMMO Group
is obliged under the statutory provisions to make a one-time
severance payment to any employee whose employment
is terminated by the employer or who reaches the age of retire-
ment while employed. The benefit entitlements are dependent
on the number of years of service and the level of remuneration
at the time of the entitlement arising, and amount to between two
and 12 months’ salary. Provision is made for these obligations.
Personnel expenses in 2012 included revenue of KEUR 1 (2011:
expense of KEUR 27) for this purpose.
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3.2.5. Depreciation and amortisation

This item comprises depreciation and amortisation on owner-
operated properties, other plant and equipment, and intangible
assets, and was made up as follows:

Owner-operated properties -6,958
Other plant and equipment -2,242
Intangible assets -66

-9,266

3.2.6. Gains/losses on property valuation

Gains and losses on revaluation include all increases and
decreases in value on properties held as financial investments,
and were made up as follows:

EUR '000 201
Changes in fair value
Increases 61,302 37,861
Decreases -42,161 -57,721
Impairment losses
Owner-operated properties 0
Goodwill -90
Other 20,096
146

Other operating income from property valuations consists of the
change in provisions for project and transaction risks and build-
ing cost settlements.



Gains and losses on revaluation by region were as follows:

EUR '000 2012 2011

Austria 9,286

Germany 5,981

Central Europe -4,551

Southeastern Europe -10,570

146
3.2.7. Financing costs

EUR '000 2011

Bank interest expenses

(incl. settled derivatives) -52,138 -56,088

Derivative valuation effects

through net income -7,807 -3,295

Exchange differences -1,977 7,328

Other financing and

interest expense -1,497 -1,455

Bank interest income 624 681

Income from investments 593 447

Other financing and

interest income 399 924
-61,803 -51,458

5
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3.2.8. Earnings per share
The earnings per share ratio compares the consolidated net
profit with the average number of shares in circulation during the

year.
2012 2011

Equity share of

consolidated net EUR

profit ‘000 24,302 20,034
Average number of

shares in circulation  Units 67,582,321 68,072,797
Undiluted earnings ~ EUR 0.36 0.29
Diluted earnings EUR 0.36 0.29

Diluted and undiluted earnings per share are the same, since
there are no potentially dilutive financial instruments in issue.

083



ANNUAL REPORT 2012 | CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4, OPERATING SEGMENTS

An operating segment is defined as having the following
characteristics:

B [tengages in business activities in which it may earn revenue
and incur expenses.

B |ts operating results are reported regularly to the enterprise’s
chief operating decision maker, who uses the information to
allocate resources to it and to review its performance.

B Separate financial information is available for the segment.

For S IMMO Group, therefore, segmentation is on the basis of
regions. The four regions selected are as follows.

Austria: This operating segment includes all the Group’s
Austrian subsidiaries.

Germany: This operating segment includes the German
subsidiaries and also the subsidiaries in Denmark, which are
property ownership companies holding properties in Germany.

Central Europe: This operating segment comprises the sub-
sidiaries in Slovakia, the Czech Republic and Hungary.

Southeastern Europe: This operating segment includes the
subsidiaries in Bulgaria, Croatia and Romania, and the sub-
sidiary in Cyprus, which is related to the Group companies in
Romania.
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Each segment is operationally independent of the others, since
each must take the local market and business environment into
account. The Group’s CFO (board level) has been nominated as
the chief operating decision maker with responsibility for
segment operations. He is responsible for allocation of resources
to the individual segments and for reviewing their performance.
Quarterly management reports are prepared for each operating
segment and submitted to the CFO.

Austria
EUR '000 2012 2011
Rental income 31,062 31,029
Revenues from
operating costs 7,298 8,204
Revenues from
hotel operations 24,671 23,885
Total revenues 63,031 63,118
Other operating income 3,781 5,430
Property operating expenses -13,394 -15,319
Hotel operating expenses -19,713 -19,109
Gross profit 33,705 34,120
Gains on property disposals 6,105 5,026
Management expenses -9,948 -9,959
EBITDA 29,862 29,187
Depreciation and amortisation -3,196 -3,631
Gains/losses on
property valuation 6,665 9,286
EBIT 33,331 34,842
Non-current assets as at
31 December 663,372
Non-current liabilities (incl.
participating certificates in
Austria) as at 31 December 663,238 706,434
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In preparing and presenting the segment information, the same ~ Major customers
Because of the large number of customers, no single customer
is responsible for more than 10% of S IMMO Group’s total

revenues.

disclosing, accounting and valuation policies are applied as for
the consolidated financial statements.

Germany Central Europe Southeastern Europe Total
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
32,260 36,337 24,019 26,793 31,194 31784 118,535 125,943
10,512 13,335 7,216 7186 11,144 12,532 36,170 41057
42,772 48,535 50,706 42,338 196,676 207,812
-22,545 -20.104 -8,487 -0,843 -22,611 22716 -67,037 76,982
q 0] 12,399 12,467 o IR 32,112 31,576
22,506 22,402 28,108 20,068 21,752 104,387 106,991
-4,153 -4,545 1,417 1,206 -890 1,459 16,408 17169
23,088 24,415 26,691 27,511 19178 20,293 98,819 101,406
234 -4,235 1,100 4121 -8,765 -9,266
26,560 5,981 -6,994 -4,551 -9,475 10,570 16,756 146
49,414 30,232 15,462 18,610 8,603 8,602 106,810 92,286
513,956 373,831 381,382 389,813 398,165 1,865,454 1,956,875
266,086 290,974 203,332 045136 151,431 171,833 1,284,086 1414377
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5. OTHER INFORMATION

5.1. Financial instruments

5.1.1. Categories
S IMMO Group classifies its financial instruments as follows:

Financial
9 DeC‘?mber 2012 Available  Heldto Loans and liabilities at
Carrying values EUR '000 Derivatives for sale maturity receivables Other amortised cost
ASSETS
Investments in associates /
Group interests 10,156 10,156
Trade receivables 10,560 10,560
Other financial assets 30 2,862 5,224 8,116
TOTAL ASSETS 30 10,156 0 13,422 5,224 0 28,832

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities

Subordinated participating

certificate capital 222,483 222,483
Financial liabilities 97,021 876,405 973,426
Other liabilities 9,358 9,358
Current liabilities

Financial liabilities 180,352 180,352
Trade payables 6,807 6,807
TOTAL EQUITY

AND LIABILITIES 97,021 0 0 0 0 1,295,405 1,392,426
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31 December 2011 Available Heldto Loans and Iialtz)liﬂﬁgslg’:
Carrying values EUR '000 Derivatives forsale  maturity receivables Other amortised cost
ASSETS

Investments in associates /

Group interests 8,996"

Trade receivables 9,943

Other financial assets 259 3,534 12,194

TOTAL ASSETS 259 8,996 0 13,477 12,194 0
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities

Subordinated participating

certificate capital 230,797
Financial liabilities 76,786 1,026,585
Other liabilities 9,717
Current liabilities

Financial liabilities 208,888
Trade payables 9,900
TOTAL EQUITY

AND LIABILITIES 76,786 0 0 0 0 1,485,887

" Adjusted
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230,797
1,103,371
9,717

208,888
9,900

1,562,673

For the most part the carrying values are measured at fair value. The non-current and current financial liabilities contain fixed interest
loans amounting to KEUR 73,947 (2011: kEUR 92,787).
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5.1.2. Hierarchy of fair values determination
The following analysis classifies financial instruments measured at fair value on the basis of the method of valuation, for which
purpose a hierarchy of three levels is used:

Level 1: Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities listed on an active market (without
adjustment)

Level 2 Market inputs for assets or liabilities that are observable either directly (e.g., prices) or
indirectly (e.g., derived from prices) other than Level 1 inputs

Level 3: Inputs for assets or liabilities not based on observable market data

31 December 2012

EUR '000 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Other financial assets

Derivatives 0 30 0 30

Financial liabilities

Derivatives 0 97,021 0 97,021

31 December 2011

EUR '000 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Other financial assets

Derivatives 0 259 0 259

Financial liabilities

Derivatives 0 76,786 0 76,786
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5.1.8. Derivatives
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S IMMO Group’s derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value. As at 31 December 2012, derivatives disclosed under
other receivables amounted to kEUR 30 (2011: kEUR 259) and derivatives disclosed under non-current financial liabilities totalled

KEUR 97,021 (2011: KEUR 76,786).

31 December 2012

31 December 2011

Positive Negative Positive Negative
EUR '000 Nominal fair value fair value Maturity Nominal fair value fair value Maturity
more than more than
Swaps 0 0 0 1 year 0 0 0 1 year
275,000 0 -48,485 1to5years 78,813 0 -8,840 1to5years
more than more than
182,470 0 -27,777 5 years 382,680 0 -49,079 5 years
more than more than
Caps 0 0 0 1 year 85,000 51 0 1 year
276,439 30 0 1tobyears 280,746 208 0 1tob5years
more than 5 more than 5
108,650 0 -2,804 years 108,760 0 -1,878 years
Collars 200,000 0 -17,956 1to 5years 200,000 0 -16,988 1to 5years
Total 1,042,559 30 97,021 1,135,999 259 -76,786

In the financial year 2012, an expense of KEUR 20,653 (2011:
revenue of kKEUR 24,224) was recognised under equity with non
effecting profit and loss, and a revenue of KEUR 188 (2011:

5.2. Risk management

5.2.1. Exchange and interest rate risk

Since S IMMO Group's rental contracts are mostly linked to the
euro and almost all of its loans are denominated in euro, the
exchange rate risk is considered to be low.

At 31 December 2012, 92% of the Group’s borrowings consisted
of variable rate loans and 8% were fixed rate loans. The variable
rate loans are protected with hedging instruments such as caps,
collars and swaps.

KEUR 3,295) was recognised in the income statement as part of
the financial results. A total of KEUR 6,019 (2011: KEUR 0) was
reclassified from equity affecting profit and loss.

The stress test (based on the position as at 31 December 2012)
shows that increases in the base rate (Euribor) have only an
effect of roughly one third on the Group’s financing costs. For
example, a 100 BP increase in Euribor increases financing costs
by only 30 BP

089



ANNUAL REPORT 2012 | CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3-month Differential
Stress test (parallel shift in interest curve) Euribor  Cost of funding cost of funding Interest sensitivity
Interest shift + 400 BP 419% 5.68% 111 BP 28%
Interest shift + 300 BP 3.19% 5.45% 88 BP 29%
Interest shift + 200 BP 2.19% 517% 60 BP 30%
Interest shift + 100 BP 1.19% 4.87% 30 BP 30%
Interest shift + 50 BP 0.69% 4.72% 15 BP 30%

5.2.2. Liquidity and lender risks Percentage of

S IMMO Group manages liquidity and lender risks actively. As bank liabilities
part of managing and monitoring liquidity, all maturities are

subject to continual review, and if required appropriate Erste Group

adjustments are made as part of the rolling budget process. Other Austrian banks

In order to minimise liquidity risks, the Group ensures that a
balanced relationship is maintained between the amounts of
loans and the market values of the individual properties. In past

Insurance companies

German banks

years the loan to value ratio was around 60%. To keep lender
risks to a minimum, S IMMO Group works with a total of
23 different, well-known financial institutions in Austria and
Germany.

5.2.2.1. Maturity analysis of financial liabilities

31 December 2012

Subordinated

participating Financial
EUR '000 certificate capital liabilities Trade payables Other liabilities
Remaining maturity less than 1 year 0 180,352 6,807 33,091
Remaining maturity between 1 and 5 years 0 472,484 0 9,358
Remaining maturity over 5 years 222,483 500,942 0 0
222,483 1,153,778 6,807 42,449

31 December 2011

Subordinated

participating Financial
EUR '000 certificate capital liabilities  Trade payables Other liabilities
Remaining maturity less than 1 year 0 208,888 9,900 39,083
Remaining maturity between 1 and 5 years 0 328,918 0 9,717
Remaining maturity over 5 years 230,797 774,453 0 0
230,797 1,312,259 9,900 48,800
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5.2.3. Borrower risks
The amounts disclosed as assets represent the maximum
default risk since there are no significant netting agreements.

Default risks on receivables from tenants and purchasers of
properties are — to the extent recognised — the subject of
provisions, the basis of which is explained in note 2.6.7.2.

5.3. Rental agreements

The tenancy agreements concluded by S IMMO Group are
classified as operating leasing under IFRS. These tenancy
agreements generally contain provisions specifying that rents
and other fees are

B tied to the euro
B with capital values linked to international indexes.

Total future minimum leasing payments (nominal value) from
operating leasing agreements are as follows:

EUR '000 2012 2011
Following year 90,286 91,607
Following 2-5 years 261,067 264,433
More than 5 years 265,498 293,487

616,850 649,527

The planned changes to accounting for lease relations accord-
ing to IFRS are expected to have an insignificant effect on the
consolidated financial statement of S IMMO, because this
proposed standard on property, which is accounted for at fair
value according to IAS 40, will probably not be applicable.

5.4. Pending litigation

In' S IMMO Group there were a number of open legal disputes at
balance sheet date, however the amounts involved were not
significant and even in total the amount was not material in
Management’s estimation.
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5.5. Related party disclosures
For S IMMO Group related parties are as follows:

S IMMO Group’s managing bodies
Erste Group
Vienna Insurance Group

Arealis Liegenschaftsmanagement GmbH

Erste Group and Vienna Insurance Group are S IMMO AG's
strategic core shareholders. Arealis Liegenschaftsmanagement
GmbH is a subsidiary of Erste Group and Vienna Insurance
Group.

S IMMO Group’s managing bodies were as follows:

Management Board of S IMMO AG

Ernst Vejdovszky, Vienna

Friedrich Wachernig MBA, Vienna

Holger Schmidtmayr MRICS, Vienna (until 31 January 2013)

Supervisory Board of S IMMO AG

Martin Simhandl, Vienna (Chairman)

Gerald Antonitsch, Vienna

(first deputy chairman)

Franz Kerber, Graz (second deputy chairman)
Christian Hager, Krems

Erwin Hammerbacher, Vienna

Michael Matlin MBA, New York

Wilhelm Rasinger, Vienna

Ralf Zeitlberger, Vienna

In 2012, the remuneration received by members of the
Management Board totalled KEUR 1,121 (2011: kKEUR 934). This
included expenses for pensions of KEUR 201 (2011: kKEUR 117),
contributions to the employee severance pay and pensions
fund of KEUR 14 (2011: kEUR 9). Members of the Supervisory
Board received remuneration amounting to kEUR 107 (2011:
KEUR 123). Members of subsidiaries’ supervisory boards re-
ceived no remuneration. Neither members of the Management
Board nor Supervisory Board members received either loans or
advances, and no guarantees have been given on their behalf.
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Erste Group provides S IMMO Group mainly with administrative, EUR 000 2011
commission and financial services, while Vienna Insurance
Group mostly provides financial and insurance services. Commissions 60
Management fees 1,383
There were the following receivables and payables with Bank loan interest and other
Erste Group and Vienna Insurance Group at the end of the interest and bank charges 29,125
year. Other expenses 2,183
31 December Expenses 32,751
EUR 000 2012 2011
EUR '000 2011
Other receivables 1,292
Bank balances 92,289 Rent and service charges 1,081
Receivables 93,581 Bank interest 261
Other interest income 267
Income 1,609

Bank balances consist mainly of current accounts balances and
time deposits at interest rates of between 0.2% and 1.5%.

31 December
2012

31 December

EUR '000 2011
Non-current liabilities

to banks 416,702 425,658
Non-current

financial liabilities 51,469 61,593
Current bank and

financial liabilities 45,632 103,150
Trade payables 88 668
Other liabilities 236 963
Liabilities 514,128 592,032

The financial liabilities and liabilities to banks were at interest
rates of between 0.9% and 7.0% and for the most part with
residual maturities of more than 5 years.

There were the following material expenses and income in

connection with Erste Group and Vienna Insurance Group in
the financial years 2011 and 2012:
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Under an agreement dated 14 January 2003 Erste Group
Immorent AG has given S IMMO Group a rental guarantee for
the property at Gasgasse 1-7, A-1150 Vienna. The fee charged
for this guarantee was KEUR 3,000.

Properties management for the majority of the Austrian proper-
ties is provided by Arealis Liegenschaftsmanagement GmbH,
Vienna, in which Erste Group and Vienna Insurance Group each
have a 50% interest.

5.6.  Significant events after balance sheet date

In the first quarter 2013, a further 65,604 shares at a price of
KEUR 310 as well as 73,929 participating certificates at a price of
KEUR 5,467 were repurchased.

Moreover, one office property in Bremen and one residential
property in Berlin were sold and committed.

Vienna, 08 April 2013
Management Board
Ernst Vejdovszky m.p.

Friedrich Wachernig MBA m.p.
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D eC|arat|O n pursuant to section 82(4)(3) Austrian Stock Exchange Act (BORSEG)

»STATEMENT OF ALL LEGAL REPRESENTATIVES

We confirm to the best of our knowledge that the consolidated
financial statements give a true and fair view of the assets,
liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the group as
required by the applicable accounting standards and that the
group management report gives a true and fair view of the
development and performance of the business and the position
of the group, together with a description of the principal risks
and uncertainties the group faces. We confirm to the best of our
knowledge that the separate financial statements give a true and

Ernst Vejdovszky m.p.

fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or
loss of the parent company as required by the applicable
accounting standards and that the management report gives a
true and fair view of the development and performance of the
business and the position of the company, together with a
description of the principal risks and uncertainties the company
faces.”

Vienna, 08 April 2013

The Management Board

i /W/

Friedrich Wachernig MBA m.p.

l
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Auditors’ Report

REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
S IMMO AG, Vienna, for the year ended 31 December 2012.
These consolidated financial statements comprise the con-
solidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2012, and the
consolidated income statement and statement of total compre-
hensive income, the statement of changes in stockholders’
equity and the cash flow statement, all for the year ended
31 December 2012, together with the notes to the consolidated
financial statements.

Management’s responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

Management is responsible for group accounting and for the
preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the EU. This responsibility
includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal
controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free of material mis-
statement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting
estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.
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Auditors’ responsibility and the statutory audit

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with laws and regulations applicable in
Austria and in accordance with the International Standards on
Auditing (ISAs) published by the International Auditing and
Assurance Standards Board (IAASB) of the International
Federation of Accountants (IFAC). These standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and that we perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatements.

An audit involves the performance of procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consoli-
dated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risk of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making these risk assessments the auditor
considers internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of consolidated financial statements in order to
design audit procedures appropriate under the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal controls.



An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the
accounting and valuation policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by Management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

Our audit did not give rise to any objections. In our opinion,
which is based on the results of our audit, the consolidated
financial statements comply with legal requirements and give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Group as of
31 December 2012 and of its financial performance and its cash
flows for the fiscal year from 01 January 2012 to 31 December
2012 in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the EU.
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Comments on the Management Report for the Group
Pursuant to statutory provisions, the management report for the
Group is to be audited as to whether it is consistent with the
consolidated financial statements and as to whether the other
disclosures are not misleading with respect to the company’s
position. The auditor’s report also has to contain a statement as
to whether the management report for the Group is consistent
with the consolidated financial statements and whether the
disclosures pursuant to section 243a Austrian Commercial Code
(UGB) are appropriate. In our opinion, the management report
for the Group is consistent with the consolidated financial
statements. The disclosures pursuant to section 243a UGB
are appropriate.

Vienna, 08 April 2013
Deloitte Audit Wirtschaftsprifungs GmbH
Erich Kandler m.p. Auditor

p.p. Wolfgang Arndorfer m.p. Auditor

This English translation of the audit report was prepared for the client’s convenience only. It is no legally relevant translation of the

German audit report.
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Property Portfolio

Main lettable area
in m2 (excl. inter-

Acquisition Total area nal parking and

date Use type in m? ancillary space)  Office in m2
Austria
Vienna
1010 Vienna, Getreidemarkt 2 — 4 (Akademiehof) 2007 Office 5,861 5,184 5,184
1010 Vienna, Parkring 12a (Vienna Marriott Hotel) 2000 Hotel 19,631 19,631 0
1010 Vienna, Neutorgasse 4 — 8 (Neutor 1010) 2010 Office 7,198 5,079 5,079
1010 Vienna, Parkring 12a 2003 Office 2,576 1,827 1,130
1020 Vienna, Franzensbrickenstrasse 5 2001 Office 2914 2,054 2,054
1020 Vienna, Trabrennstrasse 4 (Hotel Zwei) 2010 Hotel 22,371 18,971 0
1020 Vienna, Trabrennstrasse 6 (Hoch Zwei) 2010 Office 28,718 21,709 21,709
1020 Vienna, Trabrennstrasse 8 (Plus Zwei) 2010 Office 31,304 19,014 19,014
1030 Vienna, Franzosengraben 12 1990 Office 5,992 3,736 3,736
1031 Vienna, Ghegastrasse 1 2005 Office 24,859 19,909 19,909
1050 Vienna, Schonbrunner Strasse 108 2000 Office 3,050 2,642 2,484
1050 Vienna, Schénbrunner Strasse 131 2000 Office 2,901 2,148 2,148
1060 Vienna, Mariahilfer Strasse 121b 2001 Office 5,463 4,184 3,045
1060 Vienna, Mariahilfer Strasse 103 2004 Office 11,176 7,776 5,637
1070 Vienna, Burggasse 51 1998 Residential 11,284 11,284 137
1070 Vienna, Schottenfeldgasse 29 2004 Office 9,330 6,973 6,972
1100 Vienna, Hasengasse 56 (IPONE) 1999 Office 7,702 5,646 5,506
1120 Vienna, Meidlinger Hauptstrasse 73 2002 Retail 18,879 13,642 5,975
1140 Vienna, Scheringgasse 2 2004 Other 10,763 2,912 2,912
1150 Vienna, Gasgasse 1—7 2002 Office 7,358 6,008 5,736
1150 Vienna, Sechshauser Strasse 31—33 2006 Residential 7,945 7,062 2,130
1160 Vienna, Lerchenfeldergurtel 43 (IPTWO) 2000 Office 5,748 4,204 4,013
1180 Vienna, Kreuzgasse 72 — 74 1999 Residential 19,733 14,675 0
1210 Vienna, Brunner Strasse 72a 2005 Retail 14,074 8,724 0
1210 Vienna, Franz-Jonas-Platz 2 — 3 2007 Retail 14,774 10,327 2,233
1210 Vienna, Gerasdorfer Strasse 133 2004 Office 10,641 8,391 8,391
Total Vienna 312,244 233,710 135,133
Properties in Austrian Federal States
2384 Breitenfurt, Hauptstrasse 107 1987 Retail 850 850 0
9560 Feldkirchen, Kindergartenstrasse 2 1987 Retail 2,000 2,000 0
5020 Salzburg, Sterneckstrasse 50 — 52 1994 Office 5,566 3,079 2,237
2700 Wr. Neustadt, Prof-Dr.-Stefan-Koren-Strasse 8a 1991 Office 2,640 2,296 1,309
Total properties in Austrian Federal States 11,056 8,226 3,546
Total Austria 323,300 241,935 138,680
Germany
Berlin
Portfolio Charlottenburg und Wilmersdorf 65,216 64,650 0
Portfolio Friedenau 2,534 2,534 0
Portfolio Friedrichshain 30,644 30,603 179
Portfolio Frohnau 3,484 3,065 0
Portfolio Kreuzberg 36,295 36,221 0
Portfolio Lutzow Center 49,136 29,541 11,649
Portfolio Marzahn 22,394 22,394 0
Portfolio Mitte 15,173 14,323 0
Portfolio Neukélin 28,549 28,341 0
Portfolio Pankow 582 582 0
Portfolio Prenzlauer Berg 6,608 6,573 0
Portfolio Reinickendorf 1,254 1,254 0
Portfolio Schéneberg 35,500 35,273 0
Portfolio Spandau 1,279 1,279 0
Portfolio Steglitz 7,028 7,028 0
Portfolio Tiergarten 22,883 22,834 0
Portfolio Wedding 6,076 6,076 0
Portfolio Weissensee 1,613 1,593 0
Total Berlin 336,247 314,163 11,827
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Vacant main Vacant main Rental yield to

Residential Number of lettable area lettable area Market value in market value
Retail in m2 in m2 Hotel in m? Other in m2 parking spaces in % in m2 EURm in %

0 0 0 278 16 0 0

0 0 19,631 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 194 77 0 0

697 0 0 749 0 0 0

0 0 0 85 31 0 0

0 0 18,971 0 136 0 0

0 0 0 5,284 69 0 0

0 0 0 1,540 430 0 0

0 0 0 1,032 53 0 0

0 0 0 0 203 0 0

158 0 0 33 15 23 596

0 0 0 78 27 24 509

1,140 0 0 54 49 4 145

1,409 730 0 1,150 90 19 1,504

712 10,435 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 132 89 0 0

141 0 0 1,130 54 0 0

7,667 0 0 787 178 12 1,659

0 0 0 7,851 88 71 2,080

272 0 0 0 54 0 0

807 4,125 0 108 31 0 0

190 0 0 20 61 36 1,504

3,737 10,937 0 33 201 0 0

8,724 0 0 0 252 0 0

8,094 0 0 721 149 22 2,265

0 0 0 2,250 0 100 8,391

33,748 26,227 38,602 23,509 2,353 8 18,653

850 0 0 0 0 0 0

2,000 0 0 0 0 0 0

842 0 0 687 84 18 562

987 0 0 344 116 0 0

4,679 0 0 1,031 200 7 552
38,427 26,227 38,602 24,540 2,553 8 19,206 611.2 5.8

9,750 54,900 0 565 81 7 4,748

0 2,534 0 0 10 0 0

2,486 27,938 0 4 9 5 1,486

1,860 1,204 0 420 23 5 153

3,894 32,327 0 73 0 1 464

160 16,574 1,167 6,896 508 9 2,764

0 22,394 0 0 0 1 221

14,322 0 0 850 31 2 296

2,536 25,805 0 207 8 7 1,984

0 582 0 0 0 0 0

64 6,509 0 35 0 6 408

465 789 0 0 0 49 615

3,569 31,705 0 227 45 5 1,915

0 1,279 0 0 1 7 93

3,311 3,717 0 0 75 11 735

3,681 19,152 0 49 0 4 947

366 5,709 0 0 0 4 217

338 1,255 0 20 16 0 0

46,804 254,374 1,157 9,384 807 5 17,047
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Main lettable area
in m2 (excl. inter-

Acquisition Total area nal parking and
date Use type in m2 ancillary space) Office in m?

Bremen 15,585 14,839 10,283
Halle 29,149 29,132 1,342
Hamburg 36,227 32,523 0
Leipzig 29,311 29,258 3,912
Munich 20,369 8,433 7,654
Rostock 8,222 8,126 0
Total Germany 475,110 436,474 35,018
SEE
Bulgaria
1505 Sofia, 48 Sitnyakovo Blv. (Serdika Center) 2010 Retail 81,294 46,980 0
1505 Sofia, 48 Sitnyakovo Blv. (Serdika Offices) 2012 Office 38,770 28,870 28,870
Total Bulgaria 120,064 75,851 28,870
Croatia
10000 Zagreb, Miramarska 23 (Eurocenter) 2008 Office 11,403 8,207 7,538
Total Croatia 11,403 8,207 7,538
Romania
10061 Bucharest, Calea Victorei 37b, Sektor 1 (Novotel Bucharest) 2006 Hotel 19,426 15,926 0
40069 Bucharest, Piata Sudului/Calea Vacaresti nr. 391 (Sun Plaza) 2010 Retail 130,507 81,211 0
40069 Bucharest, Piata Sudului/Calea Vacaresti nr. 391 (Sun Offices) 2010 Office 13,986 9,639 9,639
Total Romania 163,918 106,776 9,639
Total SEE 295,385 190,833 46,047
CEE
Czech Republic
11000 Prague, Wenceslas Square 22 (Hotel Juli§) 2004 Hotel 6,871 5,169 0
11000 Prague, Narodni 41 2000 Office 2,780 2,364 2,014
11000 Prague, Wenceslas Square 41 (Hotel Ramada) 2002 Hotel 8,768 8,768 0
Total Czech Republic 18,418 16,301 2,014
Hungary
1016 Budapest, Hegyalja Ut 7—13. (Buda Center) 2005 Office 7,288 5,455 4,679
1051 Budapest, Bajcsy Zsilinszky ut 12. (City Center) 2001 Office 10,860 8,178 7,396
1052 Budapest, Apaczai Csere Janos utca 2—4. (Budapest Marriott Hotel) 2005 Hotel 30,021 27,646 0
1065 Budapest, Nagymez¢ utca 44. (Podium Irodahéz) 2006 Office 7,942 5,711 5,323
1122 Budapest, Maros utca 19—21. (Maros Utca Business Center) 2004 Office 8,573 6,422 6,422
1134 Budapest, Vaci Ut 35. (River Estates) 2001 Office 29,449 19,690 17,533
1135 Budapest, Szegedi Ut 35—37. (Twin Center) 2006 Office 8,184 5,663 5,280
1138 Budapest, Vaci Ut 182. (Blue Cube Irodahaz) 2001 Office 14,476 9,184 8,776
Total Hungary 116,791 87,949 55,409
Slovakia
81106 Bratislava, Vysoké 2a (Austria Trend Hotel Bratislava) 2008 Hotel 16,427 13,929 1,161
82104 Bratislava, Galvaniho 7 (Galvaniho Business Center I) 2004 Office 11,405 8,789 7,465
82104 Bratislava, Galvaniho 7b (Galvaniho Business Center II) 2006 Office 21,440 12,969 11,503
82104 Bratislava, Galvaniho 17 (Galvaniho Business Center IV) 2008 Office 36,639 24,582 21,871
97101 Prievidza, NedoZerska cesta Ill. 1269 / 17b (Big box retail) 2000 Retail 18,737 13,737 0
91101 Trencin, Ku Stvrtiam 7029 —7030 (Big box retail) 2000 Retail 11,954 11,954 0
Total Slovakia 111,602 85,960 42,000
Total CEE 246,812 190,210 99,423
Total values (without land bank) 1,340,607 1,059,452 319,168
Land bank
82104 Bratislava, IPD International (Einsteinova) 2007 Office 36,000 23,000
14000 Prague, Karlin, Pobrezni-Thamova (River Star Karlin) 2006 Hotel 8,500 7,300
10061 Bucharest, Calea Grivitei Nr. 94, 1. District (Grivitei [+11) 2006 Office 30,000 23,000
10061 Bucharest/Jilava Giurgiului DN 5-km 84750 (Roter Investi) 2000 Retail 40,000 40,000
Total land bank 114,500 93,300

Quartier Belvedere Central is held at equity and therefore does not appear in the property portfolio overview.
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Other in m2
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parking spaces
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Vacant main Rental yield to
lettable area Market value in market value
in % in m2 EUR m in %

3,126 1,431 0 746 122 13 1,924
25,541 2,249 0 18 0 7 2,063
3,937 28,586 0 29 178 9 2,842
3,140 22,206 0 53 11 18 5,270
0 779 0 6,211 229 8 695

684 7,442 0 72 3 7 602

46,980 0 0 4,313 1,200 2 1,067
0 0 0 0 396 56 16,231
46,980 0 0 4,313 1,596 23 17,298
669 0 0 121 123 0 0
669 0 0 121 123 0 0
2,128 0 13,798 0 140 0 0
81,211 0 0 1,471 1,913 2 1,320
0 0 0 346 160 29 2,757
83,339 0 13,798 1,817 2,213 4 4,077
1,684 0 3,485 1,701 0 0 0
207 144 0 116 12 41 979
4,046 0 4,722 0 0 0 0
5,937 144 8,207 1,817 12 6 979
776 0 0 208 65 36 1,957
782 0 0 182 100 37 3,007

0 0 27,646 0 95 0 0

388 0 0 56 87 0 0

0 0 0 426 69 0 13
2,156 0 0 959 352 29 5,786
383 0 0 946 63 0 0
408 0 0 666 185 0 0
4,894 0 27,646 3,442 1,016 12 10,763
2,207 0 10,560 74 101 3 348
1,324 0 0 1,017 156 1 104
1,467 0 0 1,046 418 8 1,016
2,711 0 0 1,857 708 0 0
13,737 0 0 0 286 8 1,126
11,954 0 0 0 391 0 0
33,399 0 10,560 3,993 2,060 3 2,594

296,877

343,437 99,970

56,554

10,923

85,361 1,852.2
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Glossary and list of abbreviations

A glossary with the most important defintions of the technical terms used in this annual report can be found

on our website.

Our online glossary:

www.simmoag.at/en/glossary

A Austria

ATX Austrian Traded Index

BG Bulgaria

BGN Bulgarian lev

BP Basis points

CEE Central and Eastern Europe
CF Cash flow

CY Cyprus

Cz Czech Republic

CzK Czech crown

D Germany

DK Denmark

DKK Danish crown

EPRA  European Public Real Estate Association
EUR Euro

This Annual Report has been prepared and proofread with the greatest
possible care, and the information in it has been checked. Nevertheless,
the possibility of rounding errors, errors in transmission, typesetting or
printing errors cannot be excluded. Apparent arithmetical errors may be
the result of rounding errors caused by software. In the interests of
simplicity and readability, the language of this Annual Report is as far as
possible gender neutral. Therefore, the terms used refer to people of
both genders. This Annual Report contains information and forecasts
relating to the future development of S IMMO AG and its subsidiaries.
These forecasts are estimates, based on the information available to us

100

EUR 000 Thousand euro

kEUR Thousand euro
H Hungary

HR Croatia

HRK Croatian kuna
HUF Hungarian forint

IAS International Accounting Standards

IATX Austria’s property share index

IFRIC International Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee

IFRS International Financial Reporting Standard

KESt Investment income withholding tax
(Kapitalertragsteuer)

L&R Loans and receivables

PP Percentage points

RO Romania

RON Romanian leu

SEE Southeastern Europe

SK Slovakia

at the time the Annual Report was prepared. Should the assumptions on
which the forecasts are based prove to be unfounded, or should events
of the kind described in the risk report occur, then the actual outcomes
may differ from those currently expected. This Annual Report neither con-
tains nor implies a recommendation either to buy or to sell shares in
S IMMO AG. Past events are not a reliable indicator of future develop-
ments. This Annual Report has been prepared in the German language,
and only the German language version is authentic. The Annual Report
in other languages is a translation of the German Report.
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Financial calendar 2013

26 March 2013

25 April 2013

23 May 2013

12 June 2013

17 June 2013

19 June 2013

27 August 2013

21 November 2013

o !. Follow us on Twitter:
twitter http://twitter.com/simmoag

mm_ View our videos on YouTube:

http://Mww.youtube.com/simmoag

Contact

S IMMO AG

Friedrichstrasse 10

1010 Vienna

E-mail: office@simmoag.at
Phone: +43 (0)50 100-27521
Fax:  +43(0)50 100 9-27521

Investor Relations

E-mail: investor@simmoag.at
Phone: +43 (0)50 100-27556
Fax:  +43(0)50 100 9-27556

Corporate Communications
E-mail: media@simmoag.at
Phone: +43 (0)50 100-27522
Fax:  +43 (0)50 100 9-27522

Preliminary results 2012

Annual results 2012

Results for the first quarter 2013
Annual General Meeting
Dividend ex day

Dividend payment day
Results for the first half year 2013
Results for the first three quarters 2013

fl & k View our pictures on Flickr:
Ic r http://mww.flickr.com/photos/simmoag

EHE M Our network on Xing:

https://www.xing.com/companies/simmo

View our profile on Linkedin:
s http://www.linkedin.com/company/2279913

Publication details

Concept and design
Berichtsmanufaktur GmbH, Hamburg

Photography

Christina Hausler, Vienna (pages 4, 7, 19)

Detlef Overmann, Hamburg (Cover, pages 2, 20, 22, 24, 26, 28)
Petra Spiola, Vienna (page 10)
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